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Cover Rationale 
As part of Niagara Mohawk's ongoing self-assessment program, a new vision 
for the corporation was developed and articulated late in 1990. It describes the 
company we aspire to be, and defines the skills we will need and the behaviors 
we will value to reach our goal. This vision already is becoming an integral part 
of our internal communications. We now are communicating our vision and 
our efforts to achieve it externally to those key audiences who will benefit by 
our actions - investors, customers, regulators and the communities we serve.

Highlights of 1990 1990 1989 % Change 

Total operating revenues ............................ $ 3,154,719,000 $ 2,906,043,000 8.6 

Income available for common stockholders ............. $ 40,578,000 $ 105,601,000 (61.6) 

Earnings per common share ........................... $ .30 $ .78 (61.5) 

Dividends per common share ........... $........... $.60 

Common shares outstanding (average) ..................... 136,100,000 136,052,000 

Utility plant (gross) ................................. $ 8,702,741,000 $ 8,324,112,000 4.5 

Construction work in progress ........................ $ 442,982,000 $ 387,520,000 14,3 

Gross additions to utility plant ........................ $ 431,579,000 $ 413,492,000 4.4 

Public. kilowatt-hour sales ............................ 34,033,000,000 34,201,000,000 (.5) 

Total kilowatt-hour sales ............................ 35,544,000,000 35,396,000,000 .4 

Electric customers at end of year ........ ................ 1,520,000 1,504,000 1.1 

Electric peak load (kilowatts) ......................... 5,792,000 6,376,000 (9.2) 

Natural gas sales (dekatberms) ....... ................... 78,617,000 80,677,000 (2.6) 

Natural gas transported (dekatherms) ....................... 34,242,000 33,769,000 1.4

Gas customers at end of year ............. 475,000 466.000

Maximum day gas deliveries (dekatberms) .............. 714,122 802,909 (11.1)



Letter to shareholders: There is an adage in business that the only constant is change. Never was that more evident for 

Niagara Mohawk than in 1990. We instituted a num
ber of significant changes in the past year, building on 

a framework for financial improvement constructed in 

1989. Some changes were made rapidly while others took 
longer, and some are yet to come.  

Our goal in managing these changes is a stronger, 
more competitive Niagara Mohawk. We want to 
be among the best in our industry 

A measure of our progress will be our 
ability to resume payment of dividends on 
your shares of common stock. Both we and 

Caman ono.n d our regulators view another measure of 
Chairman of the Board and 
ChiefExecutie-Officer success as long-term, sustained improve

ment in operations.  

February 20,1991 Although our financial results did not 
meet expectations, the groundwork has 

been laid for significant improvement in 1991 
and beyond.  

.. Earnings for 1990 were $40.6 million or 
<' $30 per share, after the impact of a $140 

million ($.68 per share after tax) write-off of 
disallowed costs associated with nuclear 

. operations. Earnings for 1990 were aided by 
our August 1989 regulatory agreement that 

provided for expense deferrals tied to our self-assessment program.  
Also adversely affecting earnings were expenses associated with the extended 

outages at both the company's nuclear plants, warmer than normal weather in the 
fourth quarter and a further write-off of the company's investment in its uranium 

mining subsidiary 
Earnings were $105.6 million or $.78 per share in 1989.  

Milestones in 1990 
The August 1989 regulatory agreement was the beginning of a comprehensive program 

of change for Niagara Mohawk. Several areas requiring particular attention over the next 
several years were identified, Substantial progress was made on a number of fronts: 
In July, we returned Nine Mile One to service following 31 months of intensive work and 

regulatory scrutiny. The plant reached full power in October.  
We negotiated a new three-year labor agreement with the International Brotherhood of Electrical 

Workers locals covering 8,400 union employees.  
Through our self-assessment program, we focused on improvements in operation that will enhance 

our ability to control expenses and respond to changing customer needs.  
Our reorganization continues. Several outstanding individuals joined our board and senior management 

2 team and will assist us in this process.  
The year was not without difficulties and disappointments. Foremost was the omission of dividends on 

common stock throughout the year. In late November, the regulatory requirement of returning Nine Mile One 

to service was satisfied, but continuing uncertainties did not make it prudent to recommend dividend payment 

to the Board of Directors, However, it is our intention to recommend reinstatement of a dividend at the earliest 

time that financial and operational conditions warrant.  

A Complex Regulatory Arena 
Commanding a great deal of attention throughout 1990 were the complex and often protracted negotiations with 

regulators and other parties concerning rates, nuclear issues and other matters.  

During the year, the Public Service Commission approved an agreement between Niagara Mohawk and several 

parties that closed out a number of issues involving Nine Mile Two construction and outages. This agreement, 

while having only a small impact on our financial or operational condition, puts the construction era of 

Nine Mile Two officially behind us.  
In December, the PSC approved a temporary increase in revenues of $190 million, or about 6.5 percent This was in 

keeping with the August 1989 regulatory agreement that required temporary rates to be put into effect by January 1, 1991 if 

final resolution of the rate case and other matters was not achieved.  
In February of this year, we reached an agreement-in-principle with the Department of Public Service and other parties that 

would, if approved by the PSC, settle rates and other regulatory issues through December 1992.



We. will notify you of the outcome of 
Commission consideration of the agreement-in
principle, including the financial implications for 
the company We do not expect a decision from the 
PSC before June. We can offer no assurance that 
the Commission will approve the agreement, although 
we believe it is in the best interest of customers 
and shareholders.  

All of these matters were negotiated with the PSC, 
the state Attorney General, the Consumer Protection Board, 
Multiple Intervenors and others. We followed both the spirit 
and the letter of the 1989 regulatory agreement, and have met all 
the milestones it established.  

Our responsibility is to seek fair treatment that balances the 
interests of our customers and shareholders. Performance goals 
embodied in the new agreement-in-principle, if achieved, would 
indeed enhance results for both. This inventive approach to regulatory 
policy represents a forward step in our relations with regulators and an 
innovative feature compared to national regulatory trends.  
Reorganization Continues John M. Endries 

By July 1, we will have completed our reorganization into strategic President 
business units, each fully accountable for its performance in support of 
corporate goals.  

Our business units will be Gas Customer Service, Electric Customer 
Service, Electric Supply and Delivery, and Nuclear Operations.  

Each will have control over all key aspects of its business to achieve 
maximum efficiency and take advantage of opportunities for growth.  
Centralized services will continue to be maintained in key functions 
such as corporate planning, human resources, finance and corporate 
services, and legal and corporate relations.  

We believe the SBU structure is the best option to meet the .  
challenges of the coming years. These include increasing com
petition in the industrial markets, meeting environmental respon- ..  
sibilities, the push for open access to transmission, the growth in 
energy demand and the multitude of possible methods to meet it. As 
we work to meet such challenges, the SBU structure is expected to. ..............  
increase accountability and push decision-making closer to the point of 
customer contact.  

A Vision for the 1990s 
Much of what has transpired in the past year was the direct result of 

our PACE program for self-assessment. Change is being managed. To 
guide us in this effort, we have developed and articulated a new vision for Niagara Mohawk.  

We will become the most responsive and efficient energy services company in the Northeast to achieve 
maximum value for customers, shareholders and employees. 3 

We are strengthening the skills required to achieve this goal. Highly valued behaviors - responsible 
leadership, customer orientation, a focus on results and employee empowerment - will be stressed.  

The intent is not to change the business we are in. The business, in many ways, is changing already Rather, 
our efforts are focused on changing the way we do business in this more competitive environment.  

We are determined to have a corporate culture that stresses efficiency, accountability, quality and value. This will 
require renewed focus, and the men and women of Niagara Mohawk are committed to making it happen.  
The benefits of this effort are shared: for the customer, quaity products and services at fair prices; for the share
holder, a reasonable return on investment; and for the employee, a stable, nurturing work place that rewards innova
tion, excellence, and performance.  

Niagara Mohawks corporate vision is a simple statement of our goal to become the best utility in the Northeast This is 
our ultimate standard as we work through the gradual steps of our recovery. It requires us to be flexible - willing to accept 
and embrace change.  

Success in building the value of Niagara Mohawk to its customers, shareholders and employees will increase not by what 
we say, but by what we accomplish. We are instituting incentive programs to sharpen the focus on achieving positive results.  

The actions we have taken, and those we have planned, are outlined further on the pages that follow. We are a better 
company than we were one year ago. We are committed to being better still one year from now.  

Your support of these efforts is appreciated.



We will become the most responsive 
and efficient energy services company 
in the Northeast to achieve maximum 
value for customers, shareholders 
and employees.  

During the development of our 
vision for change, a number of 
skills required for success were

identified. We must be able to 
respond to changing customer 
needs and maintain low cost 
operations. We have to be effective 
in developing and allocating our 
resources, as well as in managing 
relationships with government 
and the communities we serve.  

These skills require certain 
behaviors - both individually 
and as a corporation - that we are 
determined to encourage. We will 
seek and demonstrate aggressive,

responsible leadership. Niagara 
Mohawk people must have a cus
tomer orientation and focus on 
results. And the company must 
empower its employees, giving 
them the freedom and the tools 
they need to make the decisions 
necessary to perform their jobs 
efficiently and effectively 

It will not be easy nor will it 
happen overnight Achieving our 
vision will require a change in 
corporate culture, as well as 
strategic changes in structure.

Very early in our self-assessment, 
we examined closely two basic 
options for organization of the 
company - the functional model 
that had been in place and a 
business unit structure.  

The functional model divided 
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the company into groups that 
perform similar work, such as 
services, finance and operations.  
When each function has a simple 
mission and can work with rela
tive independence the model 
works well. For many years that 
was the case at Niagara Mohawk.  

The strategic business unit 
model divides an organization 
along natural lines of business, 
such as generation and customer

service. Within each unit are 
placed an appropriate range of 
support functions - employee 
relations, planning, budgeting 
that allow the unit to essentially 
act as a stand-alone business.  

A group of shared services 
is maintained for economies of 
scale, as in data processing; or 
where there is need for a cor
porate direction, as in strategic 
planning or external affairs.  

Each business unit is given

Focusing 
on Results: 

'I want the 
people of Niagara 
Mohawk to have 
a bias for action.  
Always looking for a 
better way Antici
pating change and 
being ready to deal 
with it An urge to 
get it done. With 
that sort of ethic, the 
results will come.  
And everybody will 
benefit from it 
customers, share
holders and 
employees."



control of, and accountability for, 
key aspects of its business, put
ting it in a position to achieve 
maximum efficiency and respon
siveness to its customers.  

Given the evolving nature of 
the environment in which this 
company now operate 's and the 
goals established in our vision, 
it became clear that the strategic 
business unit structure was the 
appropriate option for Niagara 
Mohawk. The reasons are simple.  
We want to increase our respon
siveness to meeting customer 
needs. We intend to place with 
our employees greater responsi
bility and authority to make the 
decisions. necessary to satisfy the 
customer. And we intend to do 
this profitably Strategic business 
units will help us do this.  

We are creating four strategic 
business units - electric customer 
service, gas customer service, 
electric supply and delivery and 
nuclear operations.  

Our reorganization aligns other 
functions - human resources, 
finance and corporate services 
into strategic support depart
ments to take advantage of 
economies of scale. This new 
structure changes not only lines 
of responsibility for operational 
activities, but also redefines the 
roles of the chairman and CEO, 
and the president of the company 

Business unit organizations, 
with lines of responsibility and 
accountability clearly defined, 
will allow the chairman to focus 
on establishing the broad direc
tion of the company A major 
component of this activity re
quires an external focus, includ
ing helping the company better.  
manage its relationships with the 
governments and communities 
we serve. To support this activity 
Legal and Corporate Relations, 
Corporate Planning and Corpor
ate Audits now report directly to 
the chairman.  

The role of the president now 
has a primarily operational focus.

Reporting to him are the four 
strategic business units and allied 
corporate support departments.  

The change in reporting rela
tionships and the establishment 
of the corporate support func
tions have been completed. Full 
development of the strategic 
business units is scheduled to 
be complete by July 1.  

One of the goals of establishing 
the business units - particularly 
the electric and gas customer 
service units -.is to enhance our 
ability to serve customers, the 
very foundation of our business.  

To that end, our sell-assessment 
process includes a special initia
tive that is examining the require
ments of meeting the needs of our 
customers. We intend to develop 
service strategies that recognize 
and address the needs of specific 
customer groups.  

While still in the research 
phase, this initiative is examining 
the product and service attributes 
that drive customer satisfaction. It 
will identify areas of performance 
that present the greatest oppor
tunity for improving customer 
satisfaction.  

Reorganization is changing the 
way we are structured,- and the 
way we serve our customers. It 
also is bringing change in per-.  
sonnel, as well. We are identifying 
the best people within Niagara 
Mohawk, and are moving them 
into positions that take full 
advantage of their talents.  

We also have looked outside 
for expertise in particular areas, 
recruiting talented people who 
bring a new perspective to our 
organization. In the past year 
alone, we have added five new 
members to our senior manage
ment team.  

And in January we added two 
new members to our Board of 
Directors. They bring extensive 
backgrounds in consumer affairs 
and environmental matters 
areas already identified as critical 
to the success of Niagara Mohawk 
throughout the 1990s. Douglas

Costle. served for six years as the 
administrator of the Environ
mental Protection Agency Dr.  
Bonnie Guiton served two US.  
Presidents in three separate 
appointments, most recently as 
special advisor for consumer 
affairs to the Bush administration.  

An ongoing area of attention for 
Niagara Mohawk, our regulators 
and the industry in general is the 
continued push for demand-side 
management as a means of meet
ing and controlling the growing 
demand for energy 

Late in 1989, Niagara Mohawk 
launched a program to promote 
energy efficiency among the 
more than 3.5 million people in 
our service territory The premise 
behind this initiative is that help:
ing customers use less electricity 
or use it more efficiently often 
costs less than building new 
power plants. The cost of saving 
a kilowatt-hour through Niagara 
Mohawk DSM programs is less 
than the cost of generating the 
same kilowatt-hour.  

Because DSM programs reduce 
electricity usage, they reduce 
Niagara Mohawks revenues and 
production expenditures. New 
regulatory incentives have not 
only been designed to protect 
the company from losses of 
net revenue, but also to allow 
us to earn a profit on these 
new programs.  

The Public Service Commis
sion has approved a mechanism 
through which we are allowed to 
recover program costs, lost mar
gins and an additional financial 
incentive for cost-effective DSM 
program implementation. The 
effect in the short run is an 
increase in the cost of a kilowatt-



hour to our customers, but the 
increase is modest and partici
pants will more than compensate 
for that increase through reduc
tions in energy usage. In the long 
run, the program is designed to 
enable everyone to save com
pared to the alternatives.  

The economic incentives are a 
way to reward shareholders for 
the company's investment in con
servation and load management 

There are now 12 core programs 
under way addressing all classi
fications of customer service, 
identified and promoted collec
tively as the Niagara Mohawk 
Reducing Plan.' 

By the end of 1990, we estimate 
these programs reduced energy 
consumption by more than 
110,000 megawatt-hours annually 

One of the larger DSM pro
grams to date offers free conser
vation measures to residential 
customers who use electricity to 
heat their water. Each participant 
can request a water heater insula
tion blanket, water pipe insulation 
and faucet aerators that would 
reduce their electricity use by 
roughly 1,000 kilowatt-hours per 
year - a $70 reduction.  

So far, over 75,000 customers 
have received these kits. We 
intend to enroll over 175,000 cus
tomers by the end of 1992. In the 
commercial and industrial mar
kets, over 600 customers received 
incentives in 1990 for installation 
of energy-saving lighting mea
sures that should reduce their 
consumption by more than 33,000 
megawatt-hours annually 

We welcome this opportunity to 
satisfy our customers' needs while 
building value for our shareholders.  
To that end, we are strengthening 
our DSM capabilities for 1991 and 
beyond. Our 1991 -92 DSM plan 
calls for three additional large
scale programs, bringing our total 
to 15 programs with the potential 
to achieve a reduction of 60 to 70 
megawatts of needed electric 
capacity by the end of 1992.

In the early morning hours of July 
29, a chain reaction was sustained 
within the reactor of Nine Mile 
One, marking the beginning of 
the end of a 31 -month outage 
that brought a cloud over what 
had been one of the finest 
records of 'performance in the 
nuclear industry 

Long hours and hard work were 
required to complete over 30,000 
work items during shutdown. The 
level of regulatory scrutiny was 
unprecedented in our history 
however, the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission agreed with our 
assessment approving restart.  

After a conservative and thor
ough power ascension program, 
Nine Mile One reached full power 
in late October, providing more 
than 600 megawatts to the New 
York state power grid.  

Our decision to proceed with 
restart was based on a number of 
factors, the primary ones being 
safety and economics. We are 
confident that Nine Mile One 
can and will operate safely and 
economically 

The economics for continued 
operation were evaluated care
fully by the company and state 
regulators. We conducted an eco
nomic analysis of the plant, devel
oping a number of scenarios to 
evaluate continued operation 
versus early decommissioning. We 
concluded, 'as did our regulators, 
that the plant continues to pro
vide value to our customers, our 
shareholders and New York state, 
based on anticipated capacity 
factors and capital improve
ment costs.  

Nine Mile Two continued to 
show improved performance in its 
third year of commercial opera
tion, including a 100-day run just 
prior to shutdown for its first 
refueling. The plant came off-line 
in September for its first refueling 
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and maintenance, and returned to 
service in January 

Both nuclear plants remain on 
the NRCS list of facilities requir
ing close regulatory monitoring, 
however, the NRC recently noted 
that performance continues to 
improve. The way we plan to get 
our plants off that list is through a 
sustained period of excellent per
formance from the units and the 
people who operate them. We ini
tiated a business plan combined 
with the nuclear divisions reor
ganization undertaking as major 
steps toward that goal.  

The senior management within 
the nuclear division has been 
strengthened. A new process of 
accountability was instituted, 
empowering employees to carry 
out their jobs and holding them 
responsible for their actions.  

The company is developing and 
implementing programs to sim
plify procedures, streamline cor
rective action programs, establish 
a career development program 
and increase leadership training.  

Our efforts are beginning to 
bear fruit. This January the NRC 
wrote in a letter to the company 
that .. . the licensee has con
tinued to improve performance in 
all previously identified problem 
areas.'I February we received 
notice from the NRC that the final 
restrictions to continued, routine 
f ull power operation of Nine Mile 
One had been lifted. Regulators 
based their decision on a trend of 
improved performance and our 
demonstration of the capability to 
safely operate our plants.  

From our study of the eco
nomic benefits of operating Nine 
Mile One, its clear that nuclear 
power provides a cost-effective 
hedge against the escalation of 
fossil fuel prices. At the time the 
study was compiled, we knew that 
clean air legislation being con
sidered on the federal level would 
likely result in increased costs of 
operating fossil-fueled plants.  
That legislation was enacted. But a



more profound exclamation point 
to that study was the August 2 
invasion of Kuwait by Iraq, and 
the resulting fear and volatility in 
world oil markets.  

G eneration 
Capacity 
Our ability to meet electrical 
demand goes beyond nuclear 
power, of course. Prudent, long
term planning has assured us 
that Niagara Mohawk will not 
be dependent on any one fuel

conservation efforts, will allow 
us to meet our customer needs 
for years to come without falling 
prey to the whims of uncertain 
fuel markets.  

In 1990, our fossil fuel and 
hydroelectric generating stations' 
performance, combined with 
nuclear and long-term contracts 
for purchased power, allowed us 
to offer our customers some of 
the lowest rates in the Northeast.  

Niagara Mohawk's fossil fuel

We continued to make excellent 
use of our 74 hydroelectric sta
tions, generating more than 4.0 
million megawatt-hours during 
the year, up 9.5 percent over 1989 
and just over four percent below 
the all-time hydro production 
record set in 1976.  

Late in the year, we completed 
drafting relicensing applications 
for hydro projects, and have 
circulated those drafts to various 
state and federal regulatory agen
cies for comment. Relicensing 
applications on these projects 
are to be filed with the Federal

source. Our diversified generating 
capabilities - coal, oil, natural gas, 
nuclear and hydroelectric 
combined with long-term, cost
effective purchased-power and

stations generated more than 177 
million megawatt-hours of elec
tricity once again serving as the 
backbone of our generation mix.  
The Oswego Steam Station set a 
new facility record, generating 
more than 5.6 million megawatt
hours in 1990.

Energy Regulatory Commission 
by the end of 1991.  

Many of these facilities have 
been in continuous service since 
the 1920s. We are planning a

Building 
Responsiveness: 

"Niagara Mohawk 
will earn customer 
loyalty by providing 
reliable service and 
maximum energy 
value. We can't act 
.on what we think 
customers want, or 
what our regulators 
think customers 
want. We have to 
find out from cus
tomers what they 
want, then find a 
way to provide it to 
them efficiently"



number of renovation projects, 
including upgrading existing 
units and adding capacity totaling 
more than 70,000 kilowatts at sites 
on the Oswego, Raquette, Black, 
Hoosic and Hudson Rivers.  

We will continue'to meet the 
growing demand for energy 
through the use of our existing 
resources and efforts to manage

After separate reviews by inde
pendent evaluators and our own 
personnel, we selected two sup
ply-side and seven demand-side 
projects representing a total of 
441 megawatts of capacity 

Among the bids selected was a 
proposal to extend by 15 years the 
life of one of the coal-fired gen
erating units in our own Huntley 
Steam Station in the town of 
Tonawanda in western New York.  
The unit, rated at 189 megawatts,

fired combined-cycle turbine 
planned for Guilderland, N.Y 
near Albany - was 'submitted by 
a consortium of companies that 
include Pacific Gas &9 Electric 
of California.  

IAmong the demand-side proj
ects we selected are industrial 
lighting programs, high-efficiency 
electric motor replacements,

customer demand and usage.  
New capacity still will be 

necessary in this decade, however.  
We will meet at least part of this 
demand with power from inde
pendent producers - a growing 
source of energy throughout 
New York state.  

In 1990, we conducted our 
first all-source bidding program, 
soliciting proposals for an addi
tional 350 megawatts to be available 
by late 1994. The response was 
outstanding, as qualified bidders 
submitted 106 proposals represent
ing more than 7300 megawatts.

went into service in 1957 
Life extension of this unit is 

proj ected to be a $130 million 
investment that will include a 
major turbine overhaul and the 
installation of additional envi
ronmental controls to reduce 
emissions further.  
.The great diversity among 

bidders was demonstrated in 
the range of projects selected in 
the final award. A second supply 
project - a 216-megawatt, gas
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even a program to "round-up" old, 
inefficient refrigerators from 
across our service territory While 
such a project might sound friv
olous. to some, it is a very real, 
viable method of helping control 
the demand for electricity 

We now are negotiating con
tracts for these projects, each 
selected on the basis of cost, 
reliability environmental impact 
and the probability of success.  

Efforts to meet the needs 
of our gas customers continued 
throughout 1990 as well. In July 
we reached agreement with CNG

Building 
Efficiency: 

"We are building 
a new ethic at 
Niagara Mohawk 
that looks at cost 
management and 
service as two sides 
of the same coin 
not competing 
forces. Quality ser
vice is expensive.  
But we must look 
at quality as an 
in vestment, be
cause the ultimate 
cost of poor quality 
is even greater"



Transmission Corp., our primary 
gas supplier for the past 20 years, 
for a complete restructuring of 
gas service. If approved by federal 
regulators, the agreement pro
vides for a range of gas supply 
services to be provided by CNG 
over a ten-year period starting 
this spring.  

This will allow us to purchase 
gas transportation services from 
CNG and three other pipelines, 
providing us direct access to the 
gas-producing regions in the 
United States. In addition, we 
will be able to purchase contract 
storage from CNG. The sole pro
vider restriction in our old agree
ment has been removed, enabling 
us to diversify our supply options.  

In short, Niagara Mohawk will 
be able to take direct control of all 
its gas supply purchases. to meet 
our market needs. This will allow 
us to offer our customers more 
options, making us more compe
titive in -new markets and more 
efficient and economical in 
existing markets.  

Late in 1989, we suffered a set
back in our plans to construct a 
natural gas pipeline across the St.  
Lawrence River. The Trans York 
project is part of a contract signed 
with a Canadian supplier - our 
first entry into this market - to 
purchase 50,000 dekatherms a 
day from the vast reserves in 
Western Canada.  

The Canadian National Energy 
Board had rejected a number of 
export applications, including 
ours. We joined our Canadian 
supplier in immediately appeal
ing the decision. Subsequently 
the Canadian board reversed its 
decision, allowing us to go for
ward with the project.  

On the domestic side, the fed
eral Department of Energy has 
approved our import application 
and the state Public Service.  
Commission has issued a certifi
cate of environmental compliance 
for the project. We are seeking the 
remaining necessary regulatory 
approvals and rights-of-way on

both sides of the border, and 
we are confident approvals will 
be forthcoming.  

A focal point of our self -assess
ment program has been an ongo
ing effort to examine the way we 
do business - an organizational 
analysis.  

Working with our. consultant, 
McKinsey &If Co., we began a 
program known as Activity 
Value Analysis that examines 
all company operations and 
includes every employee of 
Niagara Mohawk.  

AVA asks employees to examine 
their activities to ensure that work 
is necessary and being done in 
the most effective and efficient 
way Ideas are submitted to im
prove work procedures, reduce 
costs, and suggest new activities 
that will increase the overall 
effectiveness of the corporation.  

.The AVA process was imple
mented in three cycles - nuclear 
and fossil generation, regional 
operations, and corporate support 
staff. Thus far, thousands of ideas 
have been submitted, evaluated 
and approved.  

We have identified significant 
dollars in potential annual cost 
savings. Some of those savings 
will require one-time start-up 
costs before implementation.  
Others are subject to negotiation 
with regulators or the labor union 
representing nearly 8,400 Niagara 
Mohawk people.  

The potential for significant 
operational improvement and cost 
savings is reaL however. Com
bined with our new vision for 
change and reorganization efforts, 
we expect to be a significantly 
different comnpany in the very 
near future.  

For example, by the end of 
1993, we should have a right-sized

work force in the nuclear division.  
The reductions will include 
some 750 positions now filled 
by contractors and the gradual 
elimination of an additional 
450 positions which includes 
temporaries and vacant positions.  

These are only targets at this 
point, and could change over time 
depending on the needs of the 
business. The potential impact of 
the other AVA cycles or further 
reorganization on total employ
ment has not yet been fully de
termined. But there can be no 
question that the effort to make 
Niagara Mohawk the right size 
is serious.  

We will follow the provisions of 
our existing labor agreement with 
the International Brotherhood of 
Electrical Workers in dealing with 
represented employees who may 
lose their jobs as a result of 
these efforts.  

A plan was developed for those 
in management who ultimately 
may be displaced. Our intent is to 
treat employees who lose their 
jobs in the most fair, dignified 
manner possible.  

The results of AVA activities in 
regional operations and corporate 
departments are being compiled 
now and developed into detailed 
implementation plans. Once 
approved by senior management, 
actual implementation of ideas 
from these cycles will begin in 
a systematic fashion.  

Specific selfl-assessment initia
tives were established to examine 
our strategic and operational 
efforts. These in-depth stfudies 
have resulted in a number of spe
cific recommendations to improve 
budgeting and planning processes, 
customer service, employee devel
opment, teamwork and communi
cations, and other aspects of 
activities for the corporation and 
the strategic business units.



Hydra-co 
HYDRA-CO Enterprises formed 
in 1981 with a mission to develop, 
own and operate unregulated 
power generation facilities that 
are reliable, competitively priced 
and environmentally compatible.  
Since its creation, HYDRA-CO 
has become a leader in the field

CO was participating in the 
ownership and operation of 115 
megawatts of waste-wood-fueled 
small power plants, 129 megawatts 
of hydro power, 101 megawatts of 
wind energy and 154 megawatts 
of gas-fueled cogeneration.  

HYDRA-CO was also con
structing an 80-megawatt coal
fired cogeneration facility. These 
facilities have a combined value of 
approximately $900 million and 
displace millions of barrels of 
imported oil. HYDRA-CO Opera-

revenues in excess of $133 mil
lion. On a consolidated basis, 
HYDRA-CO provided Niagara 
Mohawk with retained earnings 
in excess of $12 million.  

Opinac 
Opinac, our Canadian subsid

iary is in the midst of expansion,

of independent power develop
ment, ownership and operation.  
As an electric utility subsidiary, 
HYDRA-CO is required to operate 
within the guidelines of the 
Public Utility Regulatory Policy 
Act of 1978, which restricts its 
ownership of facilities to 
50 percent.  

As of year end 1990, HYDRA-

tions, a subsidiary formed in 1989, 
has grown to 180 people and is 
operating plants in California, 
Maine, New York, Vermont and 
North Carolina.  

Projects in which HYDRA-CO 
participated in 1990 generated 
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showing increased potential for 
growth in earnings, cash flow 
and oil and natural gas reserves 
and production.  

Opinac operates two distinct 
business segments. Opinac 
Exploration Limited, headquar
tered in Calgary, Alberta, explores 
for, develops and produces crude 
oil, natural gas liquids and natural

Aggressive, 
Responsible 
Leadership: 

"I want Niagara 
Mohawk to be 
known throughout 
the industry as a 
leader That will 
mean being at the 
forefront of issues 
involving regulation 
and the environ
ment. That will 
mean innovation in 
our approaches to 
customer service.  
And it will mean 
we are building 
value for our 
shareholders."



gas from properties located 
primarily in Alberta. Canadian 
Niagara Power Company Limited 
generates electricity at its Niagara 
Falls, Ontario hydro plant for its 
distribution system in Fort Erie 
and the wholesale market in 
Ontario and New York.  

A steady flow of earnings and 
cash flow from the electric busi
ness has enabled Opinac to 
explore, develop and acquire 
significant oil and natural gas 
reserves and exploratory land 
holdings. Proven plus probable 
additional reserves are approxi
:mately five million barrels of oil 
and natural gas liquids, and 290.1 
billion cubic feet of natural gas as 
of the end of the year. This makes 
Opinac Exploration Limited one 
of the 25 largest oil and gas com
panies in Canada.  

In 1990, Opinacs average daily 
production was 1,984 barrels of oil 
and natural gas liquids, and 69 
million cubic feet of natural gas, 
increases of 35 percent and 57 
percent respectively over 1989 
production averages.  

Electric revenues increased 15 
percent in 1990 to $31.8 million 
(Canadian).  

We have approved a plan under 
which an initial public offering of 
new common shares of stock 
would be made in Canada during 
1991, depending on market con
ditions. An underwriter has been 
selected, and we contemplate fil
ing a preliminary prospectus in 
1991. Niagara Mohawk will remain 
the controlling shareholder fol
lowing the successful completion 
of the offering, which is being 
made to enable Opinac to expand 
its oil and natural gas activities 
more rapidly 

This annual report outlines the 
most significant activities under
taken in 1990, and what is ahead.

Yet much more was accomplished 
than can be detailed here. A small 
sample includes: 
* After several months of nego

tiation, we agreed to purchase 
the municipal electrical system 
in Watertown, allowing us the 
opportunity to provide service 
to all customers in that area.  

" We completed negotiations for a 
new three-year labor agreement 
with the International Brother
hood of Electrical VAbrkers.  

* Our research and development 
efforts include a major project 
to study the feasibility of gen
erating electricity on a large 
scale using the latest advances 
in wind power technology the 
first such experiment in the 
eastern United States.  
Much more is yet to come.  
Our ability to succeed in 

achieving our vision hinges, in 
no small measure,. on our ability 
to forge a new relationship with 
our regulators - a relationship 
based on mutual trust and a 
willingness to work together to 
balance the interests of cus
tomer and shareholder.  

We have made a successful start 
on that task. We have worked with 
regulators throughout the self
assessment process. We are con
tinuing to negotiate settlement of 
a number of outstanding regula
tory issues, including a possible 
three-year rate plan.  

We have worked hard to open 
the lines of communication, 
especially with those who might 
take an adversary position on any 
given issue. We will continue to 
focus on our relationship with 
regulators in the year ahead.  

The vision we have for Niagara 
Mohawk has been communicated 
to our employees and our regu
lators. It is described here for 
shareholders and the investment 
community We intend to extend 
this communication to our 
customers and the communities 
we serve.  

All should share in the knowl
edge of where we are taking 
Niagara Mohawk, since all will 
share in the benefits. 0

The Niagara Mohawk Power 
Corp. 1990 Annual Report is 
indicative of our commitment 
to protecting the environment 
and reducing costs.  

The report is printed entirely 
on recycled paper stock, made 
in part from post-consumer 
waste paper gathered, cleaned 
and bundled by our own Invest
ment Recovery Center In an 
agreement with Mohawk 
Paper Mills of Cohoes, N. Y, 
we shipped over 17,000 
pounds of waste paper from* 
our own operations to be in
cluded in the manufacturing 
process for the product 
used here.  

In addition, we used soy
bean-based ink for the print
ing, thus making this recycled 
report totally recyclable.  

The 1990 Annual Report 
was written, designed and 
produced by Niagara 
Mohawk people.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations

The Company is continuing to work with 
the New York State Public Service 
Commission (PSC) and other key 
outside parties to restore its financial 
integrity which was severely eroded by 
the 1987 write-off of disallowed Nine 
Mile Point Nuclear Generating Station 
Unit No. 2 (Unit 2) construction costs 
and problems associated with recent 
nuclear operations of Nine Mile Point 
Station Units 1 and 2. Several nego
tiated agreements between the 
Company, the PSC Staff and other 
intervenors have had a dominant effect 
on the Company's financial condition 
and results of operations over the 
three-year period ended December 
31, 1990. Key provisions of these 
agreements are highlighted below: 

e 1988 Joint Stipulation and Agreement 
(1988 Stipulation Agreement) - the 
Company agreed to, among other 
things, no increase in base rates for 
electric service from July 1, 1988 
through June 30, 1990, while at the 
same time refunding $14 million to 
ratepayers over the twelve-month 
period ended June 30, 1989. The 
Company was allowed to reflect in 
electric operating revenue a total of 
approximately $102 million in unbilled 
electric revenues, representing non
cash-earnings, to offset otherwise re
quired increases in specified costs over 
the two-year period covered by the 
1988 Stipulation Agreement and to 
provide substantial recovery of the 
Company's investment in the Lake Erie 
Generating Station Project. Other sub
stantive provisions included estab
lishment, for the Company's ratemaking 
purposes, of April 5, 1988 as the com
mercial operation date for Unit 2. The 
Company was permitted to defer costs 
of operating Unit 2 from April 5, 1988 to 
June 30, 1988, and to amortize and 
recover such costs over the life of Unit 
2. The Company recorded the effects of 
the refund, the write-off of the unre
covered portion of the Lake Erie Gen
erating Station Project costs, the 
accrual of unbilled revenues and other 
provisions of the 1988 Stipulation 
Agreement, resulting in a net reduction 
in earnings per share of $15 in 1988.  

e 1989 Interim Relief Agreement - in 
partial response to a PSC proceeding 
instituted in September 1988 to investi
gate the prudence of the Unit 1 ex
tended outage, the Company entered 
into an agreement under which it sus-

pended collection from ratepayers of 
$40.7 million in replacement power 
costs through the fuel adjustment 
clause mechanism for the first six 
months of 1989. The degree of uncer
tainty associated with the ultimate 
outcome of the PSC's prudence in
vestigation precluded recording of 
these revenues for financial reporting 
purposes, which reduced cash flow for 
that period by $40.7 million and 
earnings per share during 1989 by 
approximately $.20.  

e 1989 Agreement - established a 
framework within which the Company's 
immediate financial condition was 
addressed while also providing a proc
ess for ultimate resolution of numerous 
regulatory issues faced by the Com
pany. A key objective of this agreement 
was to stabilize the Company's financial 
condition and attempt to maintain its 
senior securities ratings at investment 
grade by permitting the Company to 
defer, for future recovery, certain oper
ating expenses in an attempt to attain 
specified interest coverage ratio levels 
through the end of 1990. The parties 
to the Agreement have agreed to 
negotiate a multiyear rate plan, in
cluding incentive return mechanisms 
of between 1 % and 2% above the.  
authorized return on equity, with the 
objective of improving the Company's 
financial condition and the predictability 
of future rates.  

The Company also agreed, among 
other things, to undertake a com
prehensive self-assessment of the 
efficiency and effectiveness of its 
organization and management. The 
Company has submitted to the PSC a 
work plan, a midcourse milestone 
report and a progress report of the 
self-assessment process during the 
course of 1989 and 1990. A final report, 
discussing implementation of self
assessment recommendations, is an
ticipated for May 1991. As discussed 
below, the Company also agreed to 
study its gas business, ultimately deter
mining that it should be organized into 
a strategic business unit. Based upon 
the benefits identified in this study, the 
Company announced in 1990 that it 
would reorganize its other operations 
into strategic business units, to be in 
place by July 1, 1991.  

9 1990 Unit 2 Cost Settlement - re
solved Unit 2 cost settlement cap, 
allocation of net contractor litigation

proceeds and operating prudence 
issues and establishes a process for 
determining future operating and 
maintenance expense levels. The 
Company agreed to refund $18 million 
of replacement power costs (repre
senting a portion of replacement power 
costs collected from ratepayers during 
certain outages occurring between April 
5, 1988 and January 19, 1990) which 
was accrued in 1990 results of opera
tions. The establishment of the final 
construction cost cap resulted in an 
adjustment to the reserve for disal
lowed Unit 2 costs provided in 1987, 
improving pretax earnings by approxi
mately $6 million.  

*1990 Temporary Rate Increase - on 
December 19, 1990, the PSC approved 
a temporary annual rate increase for 
electric service of $162.8 million or 
6.9% and for gas service of $272 mil
lion or 4.9% which became effective 
January 1, 1991. These rates are subject 
to adjustment based upon the res 'ults of 
the permanent rate negotiations. The 
Company, the PSC Staff and others 
submitted the 1991 Stipulation to the 
PSC on February 19, 1991, which es
tablishes, among other things, perma
nent rates for the year ended June 30, 
1991 in an amount equivalent to the 
level established by the temporary rate 
increase. A decision from the PSC on 
the 1991 Stipulation is now anticipated 
prior to July 1, 1991. For the purpose of 
establishing temporary rates, certain 
assumptions were made relative to 
issues under negotiation pursuant to 
the 1989 Agreement, including a liability 
to customers of approximately $130 
million for Unit 1 and Unit 2 replacement 
power costs (including $18 million -for 
Unit 2 replacement power costs estab
lished pursuant to the 1990 Unit 2 Cost 
Settlement) and a reduction in the 
allowed return on equity from 12.5% to 
11.5% in the first rate year to begin 
returning the funds to customers, as 
well as rate base recognition of unre
covered regulatory deferrals (principally 
deferrals associated with targeted in
terest coverages, nuclear improvement 
costs and self-assessment costs as 
permitted in the 1989 Agreement) and 
recovery of approximately $33 million of 
these regulatory deferrals in the first 
rate year. The effect of the deferral 
recovery and return on equity reduction 
are approximately offset in the deter
mination of the revenue increase re
quired for the rate year ending June
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30, 1991. Based upon management's 
assessment of the probable outcome of 
permanent rate negotiations, including 
the fact that the PSC approved the 
temporary rate increase, the Company 
has accrued as a loss in 1990 the an
ticipated liability to customers for Unit 1 
and Unit 2 replacement power costs of 
$130 million, and has also written off 
approximately $10 million of deferred 
capacity charges associated with the 
Unit 1 outage, resulting in a reduction in 
earnings per share of $.68.  

As indicated above, the Company 
entered into the 1991 Stipulation with 
the PSC Staff and others, which was 
submitted to the PSC on February 19, 
1991 and upon which a decision is 
expected by July 1, 1991. The 1991 
Stipulation confirms the level of tempo
rary rate increase that became effective 
January 1, 1991 as permanent and pro
vides for electric rate increases of 2.9% 
($75.4 million) effective July 1, 1991 and 
1.9% ($55.7 millibn) effective July 1, 
1992. Gas rates would increase 1.0% 
($5.5 million) on July 1, 1992. The 
agreement acknowledges the Com
pany's intent to file for a rate increase to 
become effective no earlier than Jan
uary 1, 1993. The 1991 Stipulation also 
provides a Unit 1' operation incenti ve 
sharing mechanism for the first time.

For approximately a four year period 
beginning October 1, 1990, the actual 
performance of Unit 1 will be compared 
to an equivalent capacity factor target 
of 61.26%. There will be a sharing be
tween customers and shareholders of 
both replacement power costs incurred 
(for performance below 61.26%) and 
costs avoided (for performance above 
61.26%). If the actual cumulative ca
pacity factor falls below.40% at the end 
of the four year period, the Company 
may petition the PSC for permission to 
raise the issue of prudence and prove 
that it ought to be entitled to collect all 
or a portion of replacement power costs 
incurred related to performance below 
40%. Although the Company has no 
plans to abandon Unit 1, the 1991 Stip
ulation establisheIs that all reasonable 
and prudently incurred costs associ
ated with abandonment of Unit 1 will be 
recoverable; however, all parties to the 
agreement reserve the right to petition 
the PSC to institute a formal investi
gation to review the prudence of the 
Company's decision to retire this Unit.  

These agreements do not take into 
consideration the potential impacts of a 
number of emerging state and federal 
regulatory developments and possible 
structural changes in the electric and 
gas industries which may have a much

broader and longer-lasting eff ect on the 
Company's operations and the envi
ronment in which it conducts business.  
These issues include questions of open 
access to the Company's transmission 
facilities by other parties, and vice 
versa, possible "by-pass" of the Com
pany's gas system by large industrial 
and cogeneration customers, initiatives 
relating to "incentive regulation" which 
may change the manner in which rates 
are set and which may ultimately affect 
how the consequences of regulation are 
reflected in the Company's financial 
statements and the compliance and 
implementation considerations of the 
Clean Air Act of 1990 as well as pos
sible stricter state emissions regulation.  

The Company's ability to return to 
financial strength is dependent upon 
not only its ability to respond appropri
ately to these challenges and to antici
pate other emerging issues, but also 
approval of the 1991 Stipulation by 
the PSC and effective management of 
the costs of its operations within the 
limitation of the resources available.  
The successful implementation of the 
Company's new vision for change and 
the self-assessment results is intend
ed to enhance management's skills 
and provide the direction to address 
these issues.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
Earnings per share for 1990, 1989 

and 1988 of $.30, $.78 and $1.21, re
spectively (representing decreases of 
62% and 36%, respectively), reflect the 
financial effects of the regulatory 
agreements entered into by the Com
pany during 1988, 1989 and 1990 as 
discussed above, as well as the costs 
associated with the extended Unit 1 
outage, write-off's associated with the 
Company's investment in NMV Uranium, 
Inc. caused by falling uranium market 
prices and the costs of new programs 
that had not, because of changing 
conditions, been anticipated within 
certain of the regulatory agreements.  

The substantial decrease in earnings 
per share in 1990 was predominantly 
the result of several key issues. As dis
cussed below, the Company accrued a 
loss for Unit 1 and Unit 2 replacement 
power costs and capacity costs, which 
reduced earnings by $.68 per. share.  
Pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, the 
Company deferred expenses in an 
attempt to achieve specified targeted 
interest coverage levels, which im
proved earnings by approximately 
$.47 per share as compared to 1989; 
however, such expense deferrals 
and correspondingly earnings were

constrained by the Temporary Rate 
Agreement. Other factors contributing 
to the decrease in earnings as com
pared to 1989 are discussed below and 
include increases in depreciation, taxes 
other than income taxes and oper
ating expenses.  

The Company accrued the loss of 
$140 million for Unit 1 and Unit 2 re
placement power costs and capacity 
charges based upon management's 
assessment of the probable outcome of 
negotiations of the multiyear rate plan, 
which are intended to resolve, among 
other things, the prudence issue related 
to the extended Unit 1 outage. A key 
element in management's assessment 
was the approval by the PSC of the 
temporary rate agreement discussed 
above, which included an assumption 
that the Company would be liable to 
customers for a refund of $112 million of 
Unit 1 replacement power costs and $18 
million of Unit 2 replacement power 
costs determined pursuant to the 1990 
Unit 2 Cost Settlement Agreement dis
cussed above. The Company also wrote 
off $10 million of previously deferred 
capacity costs associated with the Unit 
1 outage. See Note 10 of Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.  

In addition to the negative earnings

impact associated With the anticipated 
outcome of negotiations relating to Unit 
1 replacement power cost and the Unit 
2 replacement power cost liability 
established in the 1990 Unit 2 Cost 
Settlement, the Company estimates 
that it has absorbed approximately $68 
million of Unit 1 replacement power 
costs during the course of the outage 
through the Interim Relief Agreement 
and the sharing provisions of the fuel 
adjustment clause mechanism. The 
Company also estimates that it. has 
absorbed approximately $132 million 
($28 million in 1988, $69 million in 1989 
and $35 million in 1990) of incremental 
operating and maintenance costs, 
generally occasioned by the Unit 1 out
age, in excess of amounts provided for 
in the ratesetting process.  

Earnings for 1990 and 1989 have also 
been substantially affected by the 1989 
Agreement which addressed the Com
pany's deteriorating financial condition 
by permitting the Company to attain a 
minimum monthly interest coverage 
level (without AFC) of 1.60 times 
through the end of 1990, as well as 
establishing target interest coverage 
levels discussed below. The minimum 
and target coverages were intended 
to stabilize the Company's financial
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condition while negotiations with the 
PSC Staff and other intervenors were 
undertaken to address a multiyear rate 
plan and Unit 1 prudence issues, as 
well as permitting the Company to 
conduct a self-assessment program.  

The minimum interest coverage level 
(without AFC) of 1.60 times, which was 
to exclude extraordinary-losses as 
defined in the 1989 Agreement, was 
attained in 1989 by the deferral for 
future recovery of $13.8 million of 
expenses. There was no deferral of 
expenses under this coverage provision 
in 1990; however, the actual interest 
coverage ratio (without AFC) was 1.35 
and was lower than the minimum 
allowed because of the recording of the 
anticipated liability for disallowed 
replacement power costs, which was 
considered to be an extraordinary loss 
as defined in the 1989 Agreement. In 
addition, during the last six months of 
1990, minimum cash coverage of 1.60 
times (without AFC and non-cash 
items) was intended to be maintained 
through a surcharge to customers 
equivalent to net available transmission 
and resale gross margin, which 
amounted to approximately $43 million.  
The cash surcharge under this provi
sion of the 1989 Agreement served to 
reduce expense deferrals otherwise 
permitted to achieve minimum cover
ages or target coverages (as described 
below) under the 1989 Agreement. The 
Company was slightly below the cash 
coverage target for the year ended 
December 31,1990.  

In accordance with the 1989 Agree
ment, the Company is undertaking a 
comprehensive self-assessment of the 
efficiency and effectiveness of its 
organization and management. On 
December 13, 1989, the Company 
submitted to the PSC a work plan de
scribing the self-assessment approach, 
including a schedule for its completion 
and, on May 1, 1990, a mid-course mile
stone report was submitted. On Novem
ber 15, 1990, the Company submitted 
a report summarizing the progress of 
the self -assessment to that point, and 
provided implementation plans ad
dressing the issues identified. A final 
self-assessment implementation report 
must *be submitted by May 31, 1991.  

With the acceptance of the work plan 
by the PSC on December 29, 1989, the 
Company was permitted to defer $23 
million of expenses for future recovery 
in an effort to achieve an interest cov
erage level (without AFC) of 1.75 times 
in the first six months of 1990. For the 
twelve months ended June 30, 1990, 
the Company's interest coverage level 
without AFC was 1.74 times. The Com
pany was unable to achieve the 1.75

times target due to actual operating 
results being less favorable than the 
operating results forecast in the 1989 
Agreement which served as a basis for 
the $23 million deferral.  

The mid-course milestone report was 
approved on July 25, 1990, and under 
the provisions of the 1989.Agreement, 
such approval allowed the Company to 
defer additional expenses for future 
recovery in an attempt to achieve a tar
geted interest coverage level (without 
AFC) of 1.85 times for the last six 
months of 1990. As provided for in 
the 1989 Agreement, the calculation of 
interest coverage would exclude 
extraordinary items as defined in the 
1989 Agreement. During the last six 
months of 1990 the Company deferred 
approximately $87 million (before 
reduction through current recovery of 
$43 million of cash surcharges) and, 
excluding the effects of the Unit 1 and 
Unit 2 replacement power loss accrual, 
would have achieved a 1.75 times 
interest coverage. The Company had 
previously anticipated a deferral of 
expenses of $120 million (before re
duction through cash surcharges) dur
ing the second half of 1990 to achieve a 
1.85 interest coverage; however, as a 
result of the increased costs associated 
with the extension of the Unit 1 outage 
and power ascension program in 1990 
and the course of negotiations of the 
multiyear rate plan, the Company 
agreed that an appropriate portion of 
the temporary rate increase negotiated 
for the first rate year ending June 30, 
1991 would be allocable to the period 
July 1, 1990 through December 31, 
1990, This allocation was then reflected 
in 1990 results of operations by limiting 
the expense deferral in the second half 
of 1990 pursuant to the 1989 Agreement 
to the allocable portion of the temporary 
rate increase, or approximately $87 
million of the $190 million temporary 
rate increase approved.  

On August 4, 1989, the Company 
filed an application with the PSC re
questing an increase in electric and gas 
rates for the year ending June 30, 1991.  
On December 18, 1989, the Company 
submitted to the PSC revised exhibits 
updating its August 1989 presentation, 
seeking an increase in electric and gas 
rates to produce additional revenues 
totaling $344.5 million: $3170 million 
(14.0%) in electric revenues and $27.5 
million (5.1 %) in gas revenues. The 
PSC would have been required to 
decide the case by July 4, 1990; 
however, pursuant to the 1989 
Agreement, the Company extended the 
period within which a decision is req
uired to establish permanent rates to 
March 1, 1991, although temporary rates

were established effective January 1, 
1991 subject to adjustment based on 
the level of permanent rates ultimately 
established. The Company had pre
viously agreed to an extension of the 
establishment of permanent rates to 
April 1, 1991 and recently agreed to a 
further extension to July 1, 1991. This 
extension was intended to allow for 
completion of negotiation of a multiyear 
rate plan, which as discussed above 
has resulted in the 1991 Stipulation. The 
1989 Agreement also provides for the 
establishment of an incentive return 
mechanism which would allow the 
Company to earn up to 2% per year 
above the authorized return on equity 
during the period of the multiyear rate 
plan. Criteria for earning an initial $30 
million of incentive return for the period 
ending May 31, 1991 have been estab
lished. These criteria generally encom
pass nuclear performance, progress in 
capturing savings generated in the 
self-assessment process and customer 
satisfaction indicators. The terms-of the 
incentive return mechanism for the 
remaining amounts of incentive return 
are still subject to negotiation. The 
Company is unable to predict the 
amount of incentive return that may be 
earned or the Company's ability to 
achieve the goals established pursuant 
to the incentive mechanism.  

The 1991 Stipulation allows costs 
deferred pursuant to the maintenance 
of the specified interest coverage tar
gets discussed above or other costs 
deferred pursuant to the 1989 Agree
ment, including carrying charges in 
each case, to be recovered in rates 
over a period of approximately three 
years beginning July 1, 1990. The 1990 
Temporary Rate Agreement approved 
by the P50 includes an underlying 
assumption of amortization and recov
ery of costs deferred associated with 
the coverage target deferrals, beginning 
July 1, 1990.  

The Company has been studying the 
advantages and disadvantages of con
tinuing the operation of Unit 1. Pursuant 
to the 1989 Agreement, the Company 
has completed and provided to the P50 
and the parties to the 1989 Agreement 
the study of such operations. Based 
upon the quantitative and qualitative 
benefits expected to be derived from 
continued operation of Unit 1, the Com
pany believes that continued operation 
of Unit 1 is in the best interest of rate
payers. The PSC Staff issued a re
sponse to the Company's study stating 
that the Company may have overesti
mated the reliability and value of Unit 1.  
The Staff differs with the Company as to 
the break-even capacity factor required 
for continued economical operation of
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the Unit. The Staff was also critical of 
the Company's estimated future costs 
of capital additions and operations and 
maintenance. Pursuant to the terms of 
the 1991 Stipulation, prior to each 
refueling outage the Company will 
submit a study in support of either 
continuing the operation of Unit 1, or 
reasons for retiring it at that time. The 
Company is unable to predict what 
actions may be initiated based upon 
results of the Unit 1 study or the impact 
that such results and actions may have 
on the Company's financial condition or 
results of operations.  

On October 24, 1990, the PSC 
approved the Company and cotenant 
companies agreement with the PSC 
Staff and other parties which resolves 
the Unit 2 settlement cap, allocation of 
net contractor litigation proceeds, and 
operating prudence. issues, and estab
lishes a mechanism for determining 
future' operating and maintenance ex
pense levels. The PSC Order has not 
yet been issued. Based upon the Unit 2 
loss recognized in 1987 with the Com
pany's adoption of Statement of Finan
cial Accounting Standards No. 90 and 
the terms of the 1990 Unit 2 Cost 
Settlement, the Company reduced its 
Unit 2 project cost disallowance reserve 
by approximately $6 million, before 
Federal income taxes, in 1990. As 
discussed above, the Company also 
accrued in 1990 a loss for the refund of 
replacement power costs associated 
with Unit 2 operating prudence in the 
amount of $18 million.  

On June 1, 1990, the Company sub
mitted to the PSC, and provided to the 
parties to the 1989 Agreement, a study 
of the advantages and disadvantages of 
separation, sale or other action with 
respect to the Company's gas business 
in accordance with the terms of the 
1989 Agreement. As a result of this 
study, the Company announced that it 
is reorganizing its natural gas business 
into a separate internal business unit to 
take better advantage of service and 
marketing opportunities. The Company 
cannot predict what further action or 
actions, if any, the PSC may ultimately 
take with respect to the study. Based 
upon the benefits identified in the gas 
study, the Company announced a re
organization of the remainder of its 
operations into additional strategic 
business units effective July 1, 1991 
designed to make substantial improve
ments in the Company's corporate 
structure and to increase efficiency and 
responsiveness to customers, as well 
as to facilitate accountability and re
sponsibility The Company believes this 
new structure will enable it to meet the 
challenges of the 1990's and beyond.

Under this plan the Company will form 
the following strategic business units 
(SBU's): Electric Customer Service, 
Electric Supply and Delivery, Nuclear 
and Gas Customer Service. Corporate 
Support SBU's will also be created for 
Finance and Human Resources. By 
dividing the Company into "natural" 
businesses that perform specialized 
functions, each SBU is intended to 
have control over all key aspects of its 
business, to enable it to-measure its 
performance and be accountable for 
overall results against its business plan.  
The reorganization is expected to be 
completed by July 1, 1991.  

In 1990, the Company's return on 
common equity fell to 2.1%, reflecting, 
among other items, the loss associated 
with the replacement power cost liability 
accrued for Unit 1 and 2, as compared 
with 5.6% in 1989 and 8.7% in 1988.  
Excluding the replacement power cost 
disallowance, the return on equity 
would have been 6.9% for 1990, re
flecting the effects of operating ex
penses deferred as permitted in the 
1989 Agreement. As a result of expense 
deferrals utilized in an effort to achieve 
the target coverage levels established 
in the 1989 Agreement, non-cash 
earnings in 1990 represent in excess of 
57% of earnings available to Common 
Stockholders before the accrual of the 
Unit 1 and Unit 2 replacement power 
cost liability, as compared to 47% in 
1989. The deferred costs are to be 
recovered over approximately a three
year period generally beginning July 1, 
1990, which should serve to decrease 
the percentage of non-cash earnings in 
1991, although other factors such .as 
increasing construction and related 
AFC will have a countering effect.  

The Company anticipates a return on 
equity of between 9.0% and 10.0% in 
1991. The ability to achieve this level of 
earnings is substantially dependent 
upon a number of key factors, including 
the control of expenses, the successful 
capture of cost savings identified in the 
self-assessment process and approval 
by the PSC of the amount of rate 
increase established by the 1991 Stip
ulation. Shortfalls in any of these fac
tors would have an adverse impact on 
the Company's ability to achieve the 
anticipated return on equity.  

The Company has substantially 
comple ted the activity value analysis 
(AVA) portion of the self-assessment 
process, having involved every depart
ment in an evaluation of the effective
ness, efficiency and necessity of its 
activities. A significant portion of the 
cost savings identified are subject to 
negotiation with the IBEW or approval 
by regulators. The AVA process also

The following discussion and analysis 
highlights items having a significant 
effect on. operations during the three
year period ended December 31, 1990.  
It may not be indicative of future opera
tions or earnings particularly in light of 
the effects of the 1989 Agreement, the 
Unit 1 extended outage and the nuclear 
replacement power cost disallowance 
reflected in 1990. It should be read in 
conjunction with the Notes to Consoli
dated Financial Statements and other 
financial and statistical information 
appearing elsewhere in this report.  

Electric revenues increased $499.1 
million or 23% over the three-year 
period. This increase results primarily 
from fuel adjustment clause revenues, 
increased sales to ultimate consumers 
reflecting a combination of weather
related sales and load growth in the 
Company's service territory, base rate 
increases effective in 1987, the record
ing of unbilled electric revenues in

identified activities that are not currently 
being performed but which were con
sidered necessary in the improvement 
of the Company's reliability and service 
to customers. The AVA process results 
have been reflected in the negotiation 
of the 1991 Stipulation along with any 
ongoing costs that may be incurred.  
Start-up costs incurred in implement
ing AVA recommendations are to be 
recovered in part by applying the cus
tomers' share of Unit 2 contractor liti
gation proceeds, with the remaining 
start-up costs to be recovered over a 
three year period.  

EARNED RATE OF RETURN 
ON COMMON EQUITY

'NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER
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Millions of Kw-hrs.

35,64 35396 35,544 
F 9 1,5 111] 

F34I
35,206 

19891988

accordance with the 1988 Stipulation 
Agreement, cash surcharge revenues 
recognized in 1990 pursuant to the 
1989 Agreement discussed above and

Electric revenues

increased miscellaneous revenues, 
offset by decreased sales to other 
electric systems, as indicated in the 
table below: 

Increase (decrease) from prior year 
In millions of dollars 

1990 1989 1988 Total

34,347 

1986

TOTAL ELECTRIC AND GAS 
OPERATING REVENUES Millions of dollars 

$3,155 
$280$2,906 $2,669' 

$2,660 $2,623 $ 11 2,419 

i1._ 

1986 1987 1988 1989 1990

Changes in fuel and purchased 
power cost revenues are generally 
margin-neutral while sales to other util
ities, because of regulatory sharing 
mechanisms, generally result in low 
margin contribution to the Company.  
Thus, fluctuations in these revenue 
components do not have a significant 
impact on net operating income. The 
Company was permitted to recognize in 
1988 earnings unbilled revenues in an 
amount equal to the revenue required 

U) to amortize $39 million of the Coin
pany's investment in the discontinued 
Lake Erie Generating Station and to 
recoup other specified costs. Additional 
amounts of, unbilled electric revenues 
were amortized in 1989 and through 
June 30,1990; since these were used to 
offset other specified costs, the effect 
of the amortization of unbilled electric 
revenues on net operating income was 
minimal. Remaining amounts of un
billed electric revenue have been 
deferred for future regulatory recogni
tion and thus have not impacted earn
ings. The Company has not received 
authority to accrue unbilled gas reve
nues. Included in 1988, 1989 and 1990 
fuel and purchased power cost rev
enues are replacement power costs 
associated with the Unit 1 outage; 
however, such revenues in 1989 were 
reduced by $40.7 million of such costs 
pursuant to the terms of the Interim 
Relief Agreement. Sales to ultimate 
consumers in 1990 reflect the billing of 
a separate factor for demand-side 
management (DSM) programs provid
ing for the recovery of lost electric mar
gin to the Company for reduced sales 
occasioned by such programs and a 
10% incentive based on the savings to 
customers of the programs. The PSC 
authorized the separate DSM billing 
factor to encourage the Company to 
undertake DSM programs, which the

Company expects will increase in the 
future as more programs are initiated.  
The deferral of $11 million of DSM rev
enues in excess of 1990 DSM program 
costs is reflected as a reduction in 
1990 miscellaneous operating reve
nues, is included in Other Deferred 
Credits on the Balance Sheet and is to 
be amortized to match future DSM 
program costs.  

Electric kilowatt-hour sales were 35.5 
billion in 1990, an increase of .4% over 
1989 and an increase of 1.6% over 
1988. The 1990 increase reflects in
creased sales to commercial customers 
and other electric systems partly offset 
by decreased residential and industrial 
sales due primarily to the economic 
recession.. Sales in 1989 were affected 
by a continued decline in sales to other 
electric systems caused by unfavorable 
price competition in the wholesale 
energy market offset by increases in all 
major customer groups. (See Electric 
and Gas Statistics - Electric Sales 
appearing on page 43). The Company 
expects no growth in sales to ultimate 
consumers in 1991 as the effects of the 
recession that began in 1990 have put 
downward pressure on industrial sales, 
not quite offset by growth in commercial 
and residential sales. The 1991 Stipu
lation includes the institution of an 
electric revenue adjustment mechanism 
(ERAM) that would require the Com
pany to reconcile actual to forecast 
electric public sales margin. An ERAM 
would provide stability as to gross mar
gin (generally revenues less fuel costs).  
Depending on the level of actual future 
sales, a liability to customers would be 
created if sales exceeded the forecast, 
and an asset would be recorded for a 
sales shortfall, therefore, generally 
holding recorded margin to the level 
forecast in establishing rates. The 1991 
Stipulation, which is subject to PSC

ELECTRIC SALES

Sales to ultimate consumers............ $ 49.3 $ 51.1 $ 82.0 $182.4 
Increase in base rates.................. - - 12.9 12.9 
Cash surcharge revenues............... 42.6 - - 42.6 
Fuel and purchased power cost revenues. .. 165.0 61 .0 39.8 265.8 
Sales to other electric systems........... 11.8 (2.2) (57.8) (48.2) 
Unbilled electric revenues............... (5.7) (39.8) 62.5 17.0 
Miscellaneous operating revenues ......... (12.3) 4.8 34.1 26.6 

$250.7 $ 74.9 $173.5 $499.1

35,684 
I'
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approval, would extend the ERAM 
through June 30, 1993.

Details of the changes in electric 
revenues and kilowatt-hour sales by

customer group are highlighted. in the 
table below:

% Increase (decrease) from prior year

Class of service
Electric 1990 1989 1988 

Revenues Revenues Sales Revenues Sales Revenues Sales

Residential....... 34.4% 8.8% (0.5)% 4.6% 2.6% 9.0% 4.6% 
Commercial ...... 36.7 12.0 1.7 5.6 2.2 5.7 4.3 
Industrial ........ 20.3 11.8 -(2.5) 6.1 3.7 5.2 7.5 
Municipal 

service ........ 1.7 6.0 (0.9) 2.6 (3.8) 1.5 0.8 
Total to ultimate 

consumers ..... 93.1 10.6 (0.5) 5.3 2.8 6.7 5.5 
Other electric 

systems ........ 2.6 20.3 216.4 (3.6) (31.0) (49.0) (58.3) 
Miscellaneous . 4.3 0.1 - (23.2) - 179.2 

Total......... 100.0% 10.4% 0.4% 3.2% 1.1 % 8.0% (1.9)%

On March 13, 1987, the PSC approved 
a 4.0% electric rate increase to provide 
the Company additional annual rev
enues of $74,898,000 based on (i) 
forecast sales for the twelve months 
ended March 31, 1988, (ii) a 13.0% 
return on equity, and (iii) the inclusion of 
$1.625 billion of construction work-in
progress (CWIP) in electric rate base 
($1.5 billion relating to Unit 2). The new 
rates, put into effect on March 16, 1987, 
reflected tax law changes under the Tax 
Reform Act of 1986 and a reduction to 
13.0% from 14.0% return on equity re
quested by the Company This repre
sents the last permanent electric rate 
increase approved for the Company. No 
adjustment to gas rates was requested 
by the Company in connection with this 
rate decision.  

Rate action initiated in 1987 sought 
$119.5 million (5.8%) additional electric

revenues based upon forecast opera
tions for the rate year ending June 30, 
1989 and 14.25% return on equity. The 
.Company, as discussed- above, reached 
a negotiated resolution of this request 
(1988 Stipulation Agreement) which 
resulted in, among other things, no 
increase in base electric rates through 
June 30, 1990. As a result of the 1989 
Agreement discussed above, the base 
rate freeze was extended to December 
31, 1990. Temporary rates have been 
approved by the PSC effective January 
1, 1991 pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, 
and would be subject to adjustment if 
the level of permanent rates for the rate 
year ended June 30, 1991 were estab
lished at a level different from the tem
porary rates. The Company, PSC Staff 
and others submitted the 1991 Stipula
tion on February 19, 1991, which pro
vides for, among other things, the es-

tablishment of permanent rates for this 
period at the same level as the tempo
rary rates. The 1991 Stipulation is sub
ject to approval by the PSC.  

Gas revenues increased $32.2 million 
or 7.1 % over the three-year period. As 
shown by the table below, this increase 
is primarily attributable to increased 
purchased gas adjustment clause rev
enues and increased revenues from 
transportation of gas for others offset 
slightly by decreased miscellaneous 
revenues. Although rates for trans
ported gas yield lower margins than 
gas sold directly by the Company, 
decreases in gas revenues caused 
by the migration of customers to the 
transported gas classification have 
not had a significant impact on earn
ings. Also, changes in purchased gas 
adjustment clause revenues are gen
erally margin-neutral.

Gas revenues

Purchased gas adjustment clause 
revenues......................  

Sales to ultimate consumers 
and other sales..................  

Transportation of customer
owned gas.....................  

Miscellaneous operating revenues ......

Increase (decrease) from prior year 
In millions of dollars 

1990 1989 1988 Total

$5.3 $23.5 $(6.2) $22.6 

(7.4) 4.2 3.8 0.6

2.2 
(2.1) 

$(2.0)

6.0 
(3.0) 

$30.7

2.3 
3.6 

$ 3.5

10.5 
(1.5) 

$32.2
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Millions of dekathermsGAS SALES

% Increase (decrease) from prior year

Class of service
Gas 1990 1989 1988 

Revenues Revenues Sales Revenues Sales Revenues Sales

Residential ....... 63.3% (3.2)% (5.6)% .9.9% 3.6% 3.2% 6.3% 
Commercial ....... 26.5 2.0 (1.4) 5.0 (3.3) (1.0) 1.8 
Industrial ..... 4.0 57.0 57.6 (35.2) (38.9) (36.1) (41.0) 

Total to ultimate 
consumers ...... 93.8 (0.2) (2.2) 6.5 (0.8) (0.7) 0.6 

Other gas 
systems ......... 1.6 (14.7) (14.7) (1.0) (6.4) 6.4 (13.8) 

Transporation of 
customer-owned 
gas ............ 4.5 11.4 1.4 43.3 24.0 19.8 24.6 

Miscellaneous.... 0.1 (84.0) - (54.5) - 189.9 

Total ......... 100.0% (0.4)% '(1.4)% 6.7% 5.3% 0.8% 5.3%

In January 1988, the PSC approved a 
.gas rate settlement proposed by the 
Company and interested parties which 
maintained current gas base rates 
through June 1990 while refunding 
approximately $5.7 million to gas cus
tomers to reflect changes resulting 
principally from the Tax Reform Act 
of 1986. As a result of the 1989 Agree
ment discussed above, the Company 
extended the gas base rate freeze 
through December 31, 1990. Temporary 
rates have been approved by the PSC 
effective January 1, 1991,, and would be 
subject to adjustment if the level of 
permanent rates for the year ended 
June 30, 1991 were established at a 
level different from those in the Tempo
rary Rate Agreement. The Company, 
PSC Staff and others submitted the 
1991 Stipulation on February 19, 1991 
which provides for, among other things, 
the establishment of permanent rates 
for this period at the same level as the 
temporary rates. The 1991 Stipulation is 
subject to approval by the PSC. The

last permanent gas rate increase was 
approved in 1985.  

In 1990, electric fuel and purchased 
power costs increased to $878 million 
from $77.1 million in 1989 and $704 mil
lion in 1988. The increase in 1990 is the 
result of a $76 million increase in fuel 
and purchased power costs incurred 
combined with a $99.2 million net 
increase in costs deferred and recov
ered through the operation of the fuel 
adjustment clause. While kilowatt-hour 
generation increased 5.8% principally 
due to the return to service of Unit 1, 
fuel costs incurred increased 9.1 % as a 
result of shift in fuel mix and increased 
oil prices. Kilowatt-hour purchases and 
costs incurred decreased 8.1 % and 
75%, respectively, as a result of the 
return to service of Unit 1. The increase 
in 1989 is the result of a $106.9 million 
increase in fuel and purchased power 
costs incurred, offset by a $39.7 million 
net decrease in costs deferred and 
recovered through the operation of the 
fuel adjustment clause. Although 1989

generation and kilowatt-hour purchases 
increased only .4%, fuel and purchased 
power costs incurred increased 14.8% 
because of the use of higher cost fos
sil-fired generation and higher priced 
purchased power to replace nuclear 
generation due to outages at Units 1 
and 2 during 1988 and 1989. (See 
Electric and Gas Statistics - Electricity 
Generated and Purchased appearing 
on Page 43). The Company has 
increased its fuel inventory. quantities 
as. of December 31, 1990 to protect 
against potential world supply disrup
tions resulting from events in the Per
sian Gulf.  

The total cost of gas purchased 
decreased 1.0% in 1990, after having 
increased 8.9% in 1989, and decreased 
1.1 % in 1988. The decrease for 1990 is 
the result of a 9'.2% decrease in deka
therms purchased to meet customer 
demand at slightly lower rates charged 
by the Company's suppliers, offset by 
an increase of $29.1 million in pur
chased gas costs and certain other

Gas sales, excluding transportation of customer-owned gas, were 78.6 million 
dekatherms in 1990, a 2.6% decrease from 1989 and 3.5% decrease from 1988 (See 
Electric and Gas Statistics - Gas Sales appearing on page 43). The decrease for 
1990 includes a 5.6% decrease in sales in the residential class and a 1.4% decrease 
in sales in the commercial class reflecting milder weather factors, offset by a 576% 
increase in sales in the industrial class as a result of increasing oil prices due to the 
current Persian Gulf situation. Conversely, the changes in the residential and indus
trial sales in 1989 from 1988 reflect more severe weather factors, unfavorable com
petition with oil prices and the ability of large customers to purchase gas directly 
from producers. In 1990, the Company transported 34.3 million dekatherms for cus
tomers purchasing gas directly from producers and expects a continued increase in 
such transportation activities. To the extent the increases in transportation revenues 
are due to existing customers electing to purchase gas directly from suppliers, there 
is a corresponding reduction in gas revenues. The Company has forecast an 
increase in total gas deliveries in 1991 in excess of 10% principally in the transpor
tation category, although public sales aire expected to increase almost 5%. Factors 
impacting on these increases include the effects of the recession that began in 1990, 
the relative price differences between oil and gas and the relative availability of each 
fuel. Changes in gas revenues and dekatherm sales by customer group are detailed 
in the table below:

114.5 112.9 

100.8 103.2 10. 1 33.81 34.3 
f4,9 21.9 

81.3 8'B1. 4 80.7 78.6 

1986 11987 1988 198E9 1990
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items recognized and recovered 
through the purchase gas adjustment 
clause. The increase for 1989 is the 
result of a 2.7% increase in dekatherms 
purchased to meet customer demand 
coupled with higher rates charged by 
the Company's suppliers and an 
increase in purchased gas costs 
recognized and recovered through the 
purchased gas adjustment clause.  
During the three. year period, the 
Company purchased the maximum 
allowable portion of its gas supply 
requirements on the spot market, as 
permitted under its contract with its 
principal supplier,* to -take advantage of 
lower spot market prices. The Com
pany's net cost per dekatherm pur
chased increased to $3.70 in 1990 from 
$3.39 in 1989 and $3.19 in 1988.  

Through the energy and purchased 
gas adjustment clauses, costs of fuel, 
purchased power and gas purchased, 
above or below the levels allowed in 
approved rate schedules, are billed or 
credited to customers. The Company's 
electric fuel adjustment clause provides 
for partial pass-through of fuel and 
purchased power cost fluctuations from 
those forecast in rate proceedings, with 
the Company absorbing a specific por
tion of increases or retaining a portion 
of decreases to a maximum of $15 mil
lion per rate year. The Company has 
absorbed $14.0, $13.3, and $21.4 mil-.  
lion for each of the three years ended 
December 31, 1990, 1989 and 1988, 
respectively Absorbed costs in 1988 
exceeded,$15 million due to the timing 
of rate years and of variances from fuel 
targets. In 1987, the PSC established a 
generic proceeding to examine the 
operation of the existing fuel adjust
ment clause, including whether the fuel 
adjustment clause should continue.  
This. proceeding is continuing and 
the Company is unable to predict 
the outcome. The 1991 Stipulation in
cludes a Unit 1 operation incentive 
sharing mechanism which may have 
an impact on the fuel adjustment 
clause mechanism.  

Other operation expense increased 
$15.2 million or 2.7% in 1990 as com
pared to increases of 19.3% in 1989 
and 21.9% in 1988. The 1990 -increase 
is net of the deferral of $53.0 million of 
expenses pursuant to the target interest 
coverage ratio provisions of the 1989 
Agreement and $4.7 million of nuclear 
improvement program costs included in 
Other Deferred Debits on the Balance 
Sheet. The interest coverage ratio 
deferral has been reduced by $42.6 
million of cash surcharge revenues 
permitted by the 1989 Agreement and 
$14.81million of amortization of the 
interest coverage ratio deferral through

December 31, 1990 pursuant *to the 
1990 Temporary Rate Agreement. The 
1989 increase in other operation 
expense is also net of expense defer
rals of $13.8 million related to the inter
est coverage ratio deferral and $71 
million of nuclear improvement program 
cost deferrals. Without the deferrals in 
the respective periods, other operation 
expense would have increased 9.0% 
and 23.7% in 1990 and 1989, respec
tively Contributing to the 1990 increase 
were increased labor costs due to the 
negotiated wage increases effective 
June 1, 1990 for represented employees 
and regular merit increases for salaried 
employees, rising health care costs 
which escalated nearly 20% over 1989 
levels and increased costs related to 
demand-side management programs 
which were fully implemented in 1990.  
As noted in the discussion of electric 
revenues above, demand-side man
agement program costs are recovered 
by a specific rate included on customer 
bills and are matched accordingly. The 
Company also experienced increased 
administrative costs associated with the 
sale of its Accounts Receivable, having 
increased the amount sold to $200 mil
lion in 1990. Offsetting these increases 
were lower nuclear operating expenses, 
reflecting the completion of the 31 
month Unit 1 outage and its return to full 
service in October 1990, with increased 
Unit 2 refueling outage and operating 
costs partially offsetting the Unit 1 
reduction. The 1989 increase in opera
tion expense was due to the increased 
outage costs at Unit 1 and increased 
labor costs, as well as reflecting a full 
year's operation of Unit 2, which, for 
ratemaking purposes, was considered 
to have started commercial operation in 
April 1988. Also reflected in other oper
ation expense is the effect of the 
amortization of a previously -deferred 
pension settlement gain over an 
eighteen year period, pursuant to the 
1989 Agreement, which amounted to 
$4.6 million in 1990 and $3.4 million 
in 1989.  

Maintenance expense increased 
12.5% in 1990, 2.6% in 1989 and 26.4% 
in 1988, primarily due to increased 
levels of maintenance at production 
steam plants,. Unit 2 and on the Com
pany's electric distribution system. The 
substantial increase in 1988 resulted 
primarily from. Unit .2 becoming com
mercial in 1988. and increased costs 
resulting from the continuing outage 
at Unit 1 and the mid-cycle outage at 
Unit 2.  

Depreciation and amortization ex
pense for 1990 increased 4.7% over 
1989 due to normal plant growth. The 
decrease of 5.0% in 1989 was the result

of the inclusion in 1988 of the amorti
zation of costs associated with the dis
continued Lake Erie Generating Station 
Project in accordance with the 1988 
Stipulation Agreement (See Note 2 of 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements) offset by Unit 2 becoming 
commercial.  

Net Federal and foreign income taxes 
for 1990 and 1989 decreased as a result 
of a reduction in taxable income. The 
increase in taxes other than income 
taxes in the three-year period is due 
principally to higher property taxes 
resulting from property additions and 
the reflection of Unit 2 *taxes that began 
being charged to operations since July 
1, 1988 and higher revenue -taxes as 
a result of the imposition of a 15% 
New York State surtax in 1990 and 
higher revenues.  

MAINTENANCE AND OTHER 
OPERATION EXPENSE Millions of dollars

546.8 

397 

1986

542.8 

383.9

805.2 

!173.3
668.9 
467.9 

1988

764.3 

55.  

1989

TOTAL TAXES INCLUDING 
INCOME TAXES Millions of dollars 

482 

147 450 444 453 

196 1987 1988 1989 19901
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Other income- and deductions, 
excluding Federal income taxes, 
decreased $2.9 million from 1989, in 
part, attributable to a decline in sub
sidiary earnings. The increase in 1989 
from 1988 is primarily the result of the 
recording in 1988 of a $14 million refund 
to customers and the write-off of un
recovered Lake Erie Generating Sta
tion costs of approximately $6 million, 
in accordance with the 1988 Stipula
tion Agreement, coupled with increased 
AFC, increased 1989 subsidiary earn
ings (principally Opinac) and gains on 
the sales of certain investments in 1989.  

Net interest charges increased $10.4 
million in 1990, primarily the result of the 
issuance of $300 million in First Mort
gage Bonds in both 1989 and 1990 less 
the impact of debt retirements. Divi
dends on preferred stock decreased

POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

$2.9 million in 1990 as a result of net 
reductions in amounts of stock out
standing. The weighted average long
term debt interest rate and preferred 
dividend rate paid, reflecting the actual 
cost of variable rate issues, changed to 
9.87% and 756%, respectively, in 1990, 
from 9.18% and 771%, respectively, 
in 1989.  

Effects of Changing Prices. The rate of 
inflation was 5.4% in 1990. The Com
pany is especially sensitive to inflation 
because of the amount of capital it must 
raise to finance its construction pro
gram and because its prices are regu
lated using a rate base that reflects the 
historical cost of utility plant.  

The Company's consolidated finan
cial statements are based on historical

events and transactions when the 
purchasing power of the dollar was 
substantially different from the present.  
The effects of inflation on most utilities, 
including the Company, are most Sig
nificant in the areas of depreciation and 
utility plant. The Company could not 
replace its utility plant and equipment 
for the historical cost value at which 
they are recorded on the books. In 
addition, the Company would probably 
not replace these assets with identical 
ones due to technological advances 
and regulatory changes which have 
occurred. In light of these considera
tions, the depreciation charges in op
erating expenses do not, reflect the 
current cost of providing service. The 
Company, however, will seek additional 
revenue to cover the costs of maintain
ing service as assets are replaced.

FINANCIAL POSITION, 
LIQUIDITY AND 
CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Financial Position. The Company's 
capital structure at December 31, 1990 
was 574% long-term debt, 91 % pre
ferred stock and 33.5% common equity 
as compared to 57.2%, 9.6% and 
33.2%, respectively, at December 31, 
1989. As a result of a number of factors, 
including the effects of the Unit 1 
outage and related Interim Relief 
Agreement, the impact of the 1988 
Stipulation Agreement, which, because 
of changing conditions did not provide 
for the costs of a number of programs 
the Company had incurred, and the 
required reliance on debt financing, 
through December 31, 1990 the Com
pany was unable to improve its capital 
structure. The Company has had to rely 
strictly on debt financing as a result of 
its inability to prudently access equity 
markets, reflecting its tenuous financial 
condition. Book value of the common 
stock was $14.37 per share at Decem
ber 31, 1990 as compared to $14.07 per 
share at December 31, 1989; the 
increase is primarily attributable to the 
omission of common stock dividends 
beginning with the third quarter 1989.  

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges 
for 1990 was 1.41 times which reflects 
the effects of the loss accrued for Unit 1 
and Unit 2 replacement power costs as 
discussed above in Results of Opera
tions. This is compared to the 1989 ratio 
of 1.71 times and the 1988 ratio of 210 
times. Excluding the effect of the loss 
accrual, the 1990 ratio would have been 
1.82 times. The 1990 and 1989 ratios of

earnings to fixed charges reflect the 
effects of the 1989 Agreement, which 
provided for near-term financial stabili
zation while establishing a framework 
for resolving regulatory and financial 
issues facing the Company. A key 
aspect of this financial stabilization was 
the establishment of minimum and tar
get interest coverage levels (without 
AFC) in 1990 and 1989 as discussed at 
greater length under Results of Opera
tions above.  

The Unit 2 write-off and its resultant 
impact on the Company's earnings 
capability necessitated a reduction in 
the common stock dividend rate in 1987 
to an annual level of $1.20 per share.  
On August 31, 1989, the Board of 
Directors, after considering the uncer
tainties facing the Company, including 
the level and timing of future rate relief, 
the restart of Unit 1, and the issues as
sociated with a number of ongoing 
regulatory proceedings, determined to 
omit the third quarter 1989 common 
stock dividend. Resumption of payment 
of the common stock dividend will 
depend on, among other things, the 
resolution of issues affecting the long
range financial condition of the Com
pany, principally the negotiation or 
litigation, and subsequent PSC ap
proval, of a multiyear rate plan. (See 
also: Market Price of Common Stock 
and Related Stockholder Matters).  

Construction and Other Capital Re
quirements. The Company's -overall 
capital requirements consist of amounts 
for the Company's construction pro
gram, working capital needs, maturing 
debt issues and sinking fund provisions

on outstanding debt and preferred 
stock and have been affected by the 
Company's efforts in recent years to 
lower capital costs through refinancing.  
Total capital needs since 1987 have 
been relatively stable. Annual expendi
tures for the years 1988-1990 for con
struction and nuclear fuel, including 
related AFC and overheads capitalized, 
were $3661 million, $413.5 million and 
$431.6 million, respectively 

The 1991 estimate for construction 
additions, overheads capitalized and 
nuclear fuel, excluding AFC, is approx
imately $544 million, of which approxi
mately 77% is expected to be funded 
by internal sources. Mandatory and 
optional debt and preferred stock 
retirements and other requirements are 
expected to add approximately another 
$148 million (expected to be refinanced 
from external sources) to the Com
pany's capital, requirements, for a total 
of $692 million. Current estimates of 
total capital requirements for the years 
1992-1995 are $775 million, $650 mil
lion, $899 million and $670 million, 
respectively. The estimate of con
struction additions, included in capital 
requirements for the period 1992 to 
1995 will be periodically reviewed by 
management, taking into consideration 
future levels of rate relief and internal 
sources of funds, as well as the effect 
capital requirements have on the level 
of external financing. The substantial 
increase in the Company's estimated 
capital requirements for the years 1992 
through 1995 from amounts previously 
disclosed is caused by a number of 
emerging issues. A bid by the Company 
to extend the life of one of its Huntley 
coal-fired generating units was selected

POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIFS:.
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as one of the sources of capacity 
sought in the Company's first competi
tive bidding program. The cost of re
furbishment, including the installation of 
scrubbers at this unit as well as at an
other Huntley unit to meet the emission 
limits of the federal Clean Air Act 
Amendments of 1990 (the "Clean Air 
Act"), is expected to approximate $174 
million (excluding AFC and overhead 
costs), to be incurred through 1994.  
Previous estimates of capital require
ments did not include expenditures for 
this project. The forecast construction 
expenditures for 1992 through 1995 
does not include other potential costs 
that may arise from compliance with the 
federal Clean Air Act. The provisions of 
the Clean Air Act are expected to have 
an impact on the Company's fossil 
generation plants by no later than 2000, 
with certain earlier compliance require
ments for its coal plants. The Company 
currently believes that compliance with 
the emission restrictions can be met 
with currently available control tech
nology and fuel switching alternatives; 
however, until specific regulations 
implementing the Clean Air Act are 
issued, the Company can provide no 
assurance in this regard. Based upon 
this preliminary assessment as to 
methods of compliance, the Company 
estimates that capital costs (including 
the scrubbers at Huntley discussed 
above) could reach $150 to $200 million 
through 2000 and that rates may rise 2 
to 3% to cover increased fuel and 
operating and maintenance costs and 
to recover capital costs incurred. The 
Company believes that all capital costs, 
as well as incremental operating and 
maintenance costs and fuel costs, will 
be recoverable from its ratepayers.  

Management recently approved a 
program to reinforce sections of the 
Company's electric transmission net-.  
work that are approaching the end of 
their useful lives. The anticipated cost 
of the reinforcement effort is approxi
mately $58 million within the forecast 
period. The reinforcement effort is 
expected to continue beyond 1995.  

Also considered within the Com
pany's capital requir ements are plans to 
construct in 1991, a $26 million gas 
pipeline across the St. Lawrence River 
to import Canad 'ian gas supplies. The 
primary objective of the pipeline is to 
improve the strategic diversity of the 
Company's gas supply..  

Liquidity and Capital Resources. Cash 
flows to meet the Company's require
ments for operating, investing and 
financing activities during the past three 
years are reported in the Consolidated

Statements of Cash, Flows on page 25.  
During 1990, the Company raised 

approximately $351.6 million through 
external sources, consisting of $300 
million of debt and a net increase of 
$51.6 million of short-term debt and in
termediate term bank revolving credit 
obligations. The Company also com
pleted $10.0 million of capital lease 
financing. These amounts include ex
ternal financing done directly by 
the Company's subsidiaries, which 
amounted to $15 million in 1990.  

Also during. 1990, the Company made 
unscheduled redemptions of two First 
Mortgage Bond issues.: a $50 million 
11 % Series due 1993 on August 1, and 
a $37336 million 12.95% Series due 
2000 on December 31. Capital needs 
have also been affected by the extend
ed Unit 1 outage, the suspension of the 
common stock dividend and collection 
of a cash surcharge in 1990 as permit
ted under the 1989 Agreement.  

The Company expects external 
financing of approximately $250 to 
$325 million for 19,91, depending upon, 
among other things, the possible re
sumption and level of the common 
stock dividend in 1991 as well as 
approval by the PSC of the 1991. Stip
ulation. External financing is projected 
to consist mainly of long-term debt. To 
minimize the dilutive effect on earnings 
per share of the issuance of new com
mon stock, the Company suspended 
sales of new common stock under the 
Dividend Reinvestment and Employee 
Stock Plans effective during the first 
quarter of 1989 and has since pur
chased these requirements on the open 
market. External financing plans for 
1992 to 1995 are subject to periodic 
revision as underlying assumptions are 
changed to reflect new developments; 
however, the Company currently antici
pates a range of external financing, in 
the aggregate of approximately $11 bil
lion. The aggregate level of financing 
during this four year period will reflect, 
among other thing s, the nature, time
liness and adequacy of rate relief 
including PSC approval of the 1991 
Stipulation 'which is effective through 
December 31, 1992, uncertain demand 
due to economic: conditions, capital 
expenditures relating to distribution and 
transmission load reliability projects and 
gas pipeline expansion. Start-up and 
other costs associated with the imple
mentation of self-assessment recom
mendations, compliance with f ederal 
and state environmental quality stan
dards, the effects of rate regulation and 
various regulatory initiatives, the level of 
internally generated funds and dividend 
payments, the availability and cost of 
capital and the ability of the Company

to meet its interest and preferred stock 
dividend coverage requirements, to 
satisfy legal requirements and restric
tions in governing instruments and to 
maintain an adequate credit rating will 
also impact the amount and type of 
future external financing.  

Provisions have been made within the 
external financing forecast to address 
the investigation and remediation of 
both Company owned and Company
associated hazardous waste sites.  
Such amounts, which approximate $310 
million through 2000 and include the 
Company's estimated share of remedi
ation costs for sites with which it is 
associated, are estimates based upon 
certain site specific studies and, in most 
cases, preliminary assessments based 
on Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) generic projections of costs to be 
incurred for a "typical" remediation 
effort. The estimate of total costs ex-

ANNUAL EXTERNAL 
FINANCING BY TYPE Millions of dollars
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cludes possible recoveries from other 
Potentially Responsible Parties (PRP's) 
associated with Company-owned sites, 
which the Company currently estimates 
at approximately $29 million, excluding 
legal costs that may be incurred in 
pursuing participation by other PRP's.  
The Company is awaiting approval by 
the appropriate regulatory agencies of 
plans submitted to remediate certain 
sites. Actual Company expenditures for 
these sites is dependent upon the 
extent of remediation and ongoing 
monitoring required, as well as the 
determination of the Company's share 
of cost responsibility for such remedi
ation and monitoring. The Company 
believes that costs incurred in the 
investigation and restoration process 
should generally be recoverable in the 
ratesetting process. (See Note 11 of 
Notes to Consolidated Financial State
ments under "Environmental Issues") 
The Company and PSC Staff have been 
discussing the implementation of a 
recovery mechanism for costs incurred 
for site investigation and remediation, 
which would specifically allocate rev
enues collected to recover such ex-.  
penditures. This proposal has been 
included within the 1991 Stipulation for 
the establishment of permanent rates.  

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
(NRC) issued regulations in 1988 re
quiring owners of nuclear power plants 
to place costs associated with decom
missioning activities for contaminated 
portions of nuclear facilities into an 
external trust. Further, the NRC estab
lished guidelines for determining mini
mum amounts that must be available in 
the trust for these specified decom
missioning activities at the time of 
decommissioning. Based upon studies 
applying the NRC guidelines, the 
Company has estimated that the mini
mum requirements for Unit 1 and its 
share of Unit 2, respectively, will be 
$344 million and $446 million in future 
dollars. The temporary rate agreement 
approved by the PSC and which 
became effective January 1, 1991, spe
cifically includes an allowance for 
nuclear decommissioning of Units 1 and 
2 that is sufficient to meet the Com
pany's determined minimum require
ment. Pursuant to the terms of the 
temporary agreement, such allowances 
will be accepted in future years unless 
and until the cost of decommissioning 
changes. The level of allowances was 
confirmed in the 1991 Stipulation, sub
ject to PSC approval. The Company 
filed a decommissioning report for each 
Unit with the NRC in July 1990.  

The Company believes that tradi
tionally available sources of financing 
should be sufficient to satisfy the Com-
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First Mortgage Bonds structure and financial position. Further, 
10% interest rate and the the Company could be precluded from 
sufficient Additional Prop- issuing commercial paper, which would 
ined in the Company's necessitate the use of longer-term 
secure that level of in- financing and thus put further pres
However, based on the sure on credit ratings. The Company's 
ditional Property currently cost of financing and access to markets 
available, the Company could also be negatively impacted by 

ssue approximately $217 events outside of its control, such as a 
rst Mortgage Bonds. In possible tightening of credit markets 
Company has the ability to caused by the savings and loan col
imately $1,185 million of lapse and money center bank finan
e Bonds at December 31, cial concerns.  

basis of retired bonds Ordinarily, construction related 
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Debt Debt Stock ments under Credit Agreements, $181 

million in lines of credit of which $60 
million is related to a subsidiary, and 

BBB BBB- BBB- a $100 million Bankers Acceptance 
Facility Agreement) are used by the 
Company to enhance flexibility as to the 

Baa2 Baa3 ba2 type and timing of its long-term security 
BBB BBB- BB sales. Such credit arrangements were 

increased in 1990 and 1989 to provide 
the Company more borrowing capability 

BBB- BB+ BB if needed.  
The unsecured debt limitation im

posed by the Company's charter is 10% 
e subject to revision or of consolidated capitalization plus $50 
any time and each rating million, which, as of January 1, 1991, 
valuated independent of equates to approximately $610 million 
ng. The lowest rating con- and against which the Company had 
investment grade is Baa3 outstanding unsecured debt of approx
ferred stock) for Moody's imately $310 million.

Investors Services and BBB- for the 
other rating agencies.  

Moody's has recently identified the 
Company for a possible upgrade in its 
credit ratings, prompted by the PSC's 
approval of temporary rates effective 
January 1, 1991. However, an adverse 
outcome as to levels of permanent rate 
relief could lead to increased. levels of 
debt financing and could result in a re
duction in the Company's credit ratings.  
Further reductions of the Company's 
credit ratings and the attendant adverse 
effect on the interest or dividend rates 
that may be required in future issues of
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31,

ASSETS 
Utility plant (Note 1): 
Electric plant... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . ...................  
Nuclear fuel (Note 3). .. .. ...... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ..  
Gas plant. .. .. .. .. .. ..... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. :.. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .  
Common plant.............................................................  
Construction work in progress....................................................  

Total utility plant.........................................................  
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization.............. ..........................  

Net utility plant..........................................................  

.Other property and investments.................................................

In thousands of dollars 

1990 1989

$6,999,244 
398,407 
690,485 
171,623 
442,982 

8,702,741 
2,484,124 

6,218,617 

268,149

$6,726,656 
410,207 
650,175 
149,554 
387,520 

8,324,112 
2,283,307 

6,040,805 

215,836

Current assets: 
Cash, including temporary cash investments of $3,455 and $26,475, respectively......................... 63,571 47,912 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,600) (Note 11) ............................ 150,296 205,260 
Unbilled electric revenues (Note 1)...................................................... .131,100 13 1,100 
Materials and supplies, at average cost: 

Coal and oil for production of electricity. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. ....... 109,562 69,071 
Other. .. .. .. .. .. . ... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. ....... 138,110 113,550 

Prepayments: 
Taxes .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .......... 9,633 44,814 
Pension expense (Note 8).......................................................... 53,693 76,529 

Other .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .36,766 25,121 

692,731 713,357 

Deferred debits: 
Unamortized debt expense........................................................... .112,285 121,515 
Deferred recoverable energy costs...................................................... .. 52,546 93,846 
Deferred finance charges (Note 1)....................................................... 239,880 239,880 
Deferred operating expenses........................................................... 67,919 13,980 
Other .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .118,187 123,253 

590,817 592,474 

$7,770,314 $7,562,472 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capitalization (Note 6): 
Common stockholders' equity: 

Common stock, issued 136,099,654 shares.............................................. $ 136,100 $ 136,100 
Capital stock premium and expense................................................... 1,649,294 1,649,285 
Retained earnings............................................................... 169,724 129,146 

1,955,118 1,914,531 
Non-redeemable preferred stock........................................................ 290,000 290,000 
Redeemable preferred stock............................................. ........... 241,550 267,530 
Long-term debt .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3,313,286 3,249,328 

Total capitalization............................................................. 5,799,954 5,721,389 

Current liabilities: 
Short-term debt (Note 4)............................................................. 65,912 35,671 
Long-term debt due within one year...................................................... 216,251 196,508 
Sinking fund requirements on redeemable preferred stock........................................ 17,980 17,980 
Accounts payable.................................................................. 247,548 291,658 
Payable on outstanding bank checks...................................................... 34,101 47,810 
Customers' deposits................................................................ 10,555 10,088 
Accrued taxes.................................................................... 32,511 10,379 
Accrued interest .. .. .. .. . ... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. ... .. ......... 79,824 81,533 
Accrued vacation pay. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. ......... 33,431 30,379 
Other . ................... 3,352 28,054 

741,465 750,060 
Deferred credits: 
Accumulated deferred Federal income taxes................................................ 631,354 656,235 
Deferred finance charges (Note 1) ....................................................... 239,880 239,880 
Unbilled electric revenues (Note 1)...................................................... .. 28,868 45,899 
Deferred pension settlement gain (Note 8) .................................................. .74,707 79,304 
Accrued refunds to customers for replacement power cost disallowance (Note 10)........................ 115,168 
Other .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 91 8 69,705.  

1,228,895 1,091,023 
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 3, 10 and 11) . ................  

$7,770,314 $7,562,472
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Consolidated Statements of Income 
and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31,

Operating revenues: 
Electric...........................................  
Gas ................ . ..........................

Operating expenses: 
Operation: 

Fuel for electric generation ...........................  
Electricity purchased ...............................  
Gas purchased....................................  
Other operation expenses............................  

Maintenance.......................................  
Depreciation and amortization (Note 2) ....................  
Federal and foreign income taxes (Note 9) ..................  
Other taxes........................................  

Operating income ...................... ............  

Other income and deductions: 
Allowance for other f unds used during construction (Note 1)..  
Federal income taxes.................................  
Nuclear replacement power cost disallowance...............  
Related income tax of cost disallowance ...................  
Other items (net)....................................

In thousands of dollars 
1989

$2,669,308 
485,411

3,154,719

460,485 
417,429 
285,868 
573,265 
231,895 
220,857 
121,114 
391,745 

2,702,658 
452,061

10,674 
12,395 

(139,974) 
47,600 

8,251 
(61,054)

$2,418,662 
487,381

2,906,043

415,362 
355,706 
288,734 
558,073 
206,214 
210,873 
105,103 
354,019 

2,494,084 
.411,959

10,085 
14,770 

11,734 

36,589
Income before interest charges .............. 391,007 448,548 475,143 

Interest charges: 
Interest on long-term debt.................................. 311,728 296,232 264,866 
Other interest............................................ 7,141 10,824 7,336 
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction ...... (10,740) (9,291) (5,873) 

308129297,765 266,329 

Net income............................................. 82,878 150,783 208,814 
Dividends on preferred stock ................ 42,300 45,182 49,157 
Balance available for common stock.......................... 40,578 105,601 159,657 
Dividends on common stock ...... ........................ ........... 81,623 158,228 

40,578 23,978 1,429 
Retained earnings at beginning of year......................... 129,146 105,168 103,739 

Ret ined earnings at end of year.................. ........... $ 169,724 $ 129,146 $ 105,168 

Average number of shares of common 
stock outstanding (in thousands).......................... 136,100 136,052 131,853 

Balance available per average share of common stock .............. $ .30 $ .78 $ 1.21 
Dividends paid per share.................................. $ .00 $ .60 $ 1.20

Denotes deduction

1988

$2,343,732 
456,721

2,800,453

360,373 
343,511 
265,033 
467,873 
200,969 
222,022 
134,451 
329,869 

2,324,101 

476,352

5,149 
13,587 

(19,945) 
(1,209)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Increase (Decrease) in Cash

For the year ended December 31,
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income........................................  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Nuclear replacement power cost disallowance ...............  
Depreciation and amortization .........................  
Amortization of nuclear fuel ............................  
Loss on investment in NM Uranium, Inc....................  
Provisions for deferred Federal income taxes ...............  
Allowance for other funds used during construction ...........  
Deferred recoverable energy costs .......................  
Gain on sale of investments............................  
Unbilled electric revenues .............................  
Decrease in mandated refunds to customers ................  
Deferred operating expenses ..........................  
Decrease in net accounts receivable .....................  
Increase in materials and supplies .......................  
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses..  
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and taxes............  
Changes in other assets and liabilities.....................  

Net cash provided by operating activities .............  
Cash flows from investing activ *ities: 

Construction additions..............................  
Nuclear fuel............................  
Less: Allowance for other funds used during construction ......  
Acquisition of utility plant..............................  
Increase in materials and supplies .......................  
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses..  
Payments under Cotenant Agreement ....................  
Increase in other investments ..........................  
Other ................... .......... ............  

Net cash used in investing activities ..........  
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Proceeds from sale of common stock .....................  
Sale of mortgage bonds ..............................  
Issuance of other long-term debt ........................  
Redemption of preferred stock .........................  
Reductions of long-term debt ..........................  
Net change in short-term debt and revolving credit agreements..  
Dividends paid.....................................  
Change in dividends payable...........................  
Other.............................................  

Net cash provided by financing activities .............  
Net increase (decrease) in cash .......................  
Cash at beginning of year..............................  
Cash at end of year............................. ...  
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 

Cash paid during the ryear for: 
Interest .....................................  
Income taxes...................................  

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and 
financing activities: 
Capital lease obligations incurred......................

1990

$ 82,878 

115,168 
220,857 

27,878 
15,000 

(24,881) 
(10,674) 
41,300 
(6,614) 

(17,031) 

(53,939) 
54,964 

(39,031) 
(36,122) 
20,423 

111,135 
501,311

(418,328) 

10,674 

(410,854) 
(26,020) 

(9,030) 

(52,255) 
(16,777) 

(514,936)

300,000 

(25,980) 
(240,110) 

51,591 
(42,300) 
(9,148) 
(4,769) 
29,284 
15,659 
47,912 

$ 63,571

In thousands of dollars 
1989

$150,783 

210,873 
20,767 
14,500 
85,733' 

(10,085) 
(61,607) 

(7,660) 
(22,735) 

(5,613) 
(13,980) 
23,654 
(34,973) 
63,315 

3,938 
3,954 

420,864

(387,178) 
(20,021) 
10,085 

(397,114) 
(23,316) 
15,829 

(52,162) 
(6,426) 

(463,189)

5,841 
300,000 
100,000 
(27,980) 
(98,652) 
(33,629) 

(126,805) 
(41,175) 

(6,390) 
71,210 
28,885 
19,027 

$ 47,912

1988

$208,814 

222,022 
16,362 
7,500 

88,761 
(5,149) 

(23,803) 
(1,477) 

(62,466) 
(30,554) 

76,114 
(3,000) 
46,727 
(2,198) 

(28,366) 
509,287

(349,823) 
(3,759) 
5,149 

(348,433) 
(2,133) 
12,877 

(171,100) 
(39,723) 

9,197 
(539,315)

90,683 
200,000 

69,800 
(56,980) 

(137,193) 
46,736 

(207,385) 
30,217 

(16,614) 
19,264 

(10,764) 
29,791

$329,390 $308,168 $282,555 

19,358 3,577 42,348 

$ 10,051 $ 6,293 $ 12,560

-NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Company is subject to regulation by the New York State 
Public Service Commission (PSC) and the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) with respect to its rates for 
service and the maintenance of its accounting records. The 
Company's accounting policies conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles, as applied to regulated public utilities, 
and are in accordance with the accounting requirements and 
ratemaking practices of the regulatory authorities.  

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial state
ments include the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.  
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have 
been eliminated. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries 
are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect 
at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense. accounts 
are translated at the average exchange rate in effect during 
the year. Currency translation adjustments are. recorded as a 
component of equity and do not have a significant impact on 
financial condition.  

Utility Plant: The cost of additions to utility plant and of 
replacements of retirement units of property is capitalized.  
Cost includes direct material, labor, overhead and an allow
ance for funds used during construction (AFC). Replacement 
of minor items of utility plant and the cost of current repairs and 
maintenance is charged to expense. Whenever utility plant is 
retired, its original cost, together with the cost of removal, less 
salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation.  

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction: The Company 
capitalizes AFC in amounts equivalent to the cost of funds 
devoted to plant under construction. AFC rates are determined 
in accordance with FERC and PSC regulations. The AFC rate 
in effect at December 31,1990 was 10.40%. AFC is segregated 
into its two components, borrowed funds and other funds, and 
is reflected in the Interest Charges section and the Other 
Income and Deductions section, -respectively,. of the Consoli
dated Statements of Income.  

Effective April 1985, pursuant to PSC authorization, the 
Company discontinued accruing AFC on $320 million of con
struction work in progress (CWIP) for which a cash return was 
being allowed through inclusion in rate base of that portion of 
the investment in the Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station Unit No. 2 
(Unit 2). This amount was increased to $680 million in April 
1986 and $1,625 million (including $125 million of other CWIP) 
in April 1987 Amounts equal to Unit 2's AFC which was no 
longer accrued on the CWIP included in rate base have been 
accumulated in deferred debit and credit accounts up to the 
commercial operation date of Unit 2. The balances in the de
ferred accounts, each amounting to $239.9 million at Decem
ber 31, 1990 and 1989, await future ratemaking disposition by 
the PSC. A portion of the deferred credit could be utilized to 
reduce future revenue requirements over a period shorter than 
the life of Unit 2 with a-like amount of deferred debit amortized 
and recovered in rates over the remaining life of Unit 2, as has 
been the experience of other New York State utilities.  

The Company, the PSC Staff and others submitted an 
agreement (the 1991 Stipulation) to the PSC on February 19, 
1991 establishing rates through December 31, 1991. There 
was no resolution of the disposition of the deferred finance 
charges proposed.

Depreciation, Amortization and Nuclear Generating Plant De
commissioning Costs: For accounting and regulatory purposes, 
depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis using the 
average or remaining service lives by classes of depreciable 
property. In addition, certain costs associated with the discon
tinued Lake Erie Generating Station Project (see Note 2) were 
amortized over shorter periods as approved by the PSC. For 
Federal income tax purposes, the Company computes de
preciation using accelerated methods and shorter allowable 
depreciable lives. Estimated decommissioning costs (costs to 
remove a nuclear plant from service in the future) for the 
Company's Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station Unit No. 1 (Unit 1) 
and its share of decommissioning costs of Unit 2 are being 
recovered in rates through an annual allowance and charged 
to operations through depreciation (See Note 10. "Nuclear 
Plant Decommissioning").  

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel: Amortization of the cost of 
nuclear fuel is determined on the basis of the quantity of heat 
produced for the generation of electric energy The cost of dis
posal of nuclear fuel, which presently is $.001 per kilowatt-hour 
of net generation, is based upon a contract with the U.S.  
Department of Energy. These costs are charged to operating 
expense and recovered from customers through base rates or 
through the fuel adjustment clause.  

Revenues: Revenues are based on cycle billings rendered to 
certain customers monthly and others bi-monthly. Although the 
Company commenced the accrual in 1988 of electric revenues 
for energy consumed and not billed at the end of the fiscal 
year, the impact of such accruals have not yet been fully 
recognized in the Company's results of operations in accord
ance with the 1988 Stipulation Agreement. Approxi mately $170 
million, $22.7 million and $62.5 million of such accrued electric 
revenues are included in the results of operations for the years 
ended December 31, 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively, as 
specified within the 1988 Stipulation Agreement and the 
remainder is included in Deferred Credits. Remaining unrec
ognized amounts may be used to reduce future revenue 
requirements. The amount of the remaining deferred credit 
balance fluctuates as the amount of accrued electric unbilled 
revenues is recalculated each year end.  

The Company's tariffs include electric and gas adjustment 
clauses under which energy and purchased gas costs, 
respectively, above or below the levels allowed in approved rate 
schedules, are billed or credited to customers. The Company, 
as authorized by the PSC, charges operations for energy and 
purchased gas cost increases in the period of recovery. The 
PSC has periodically authorized the Company to make 
changes in the level of allowed energy and purchased gas 
costs included in approved rate schedules. As a result of such 
periodic changes, a portion of energy costs deferred at the 
time of change would not be recovered or may be overrecov
ered under the normal operation of the electric and gas 
adjustment clauses. However, the Company has been permit
ted to amortize and bill or credit such portions to customers, 
through the electric and gas adjustment clauses, over a speci
fied period of time from the'effective date of each change. The 
Company's electric fuel adjustment clause provides for partial 
pass-through of fuel cost fluctuations from amounts forecast 
with the Company absorbing a specific portion of increases or 
retaining a portion of decreases up to a maximum of $15 mil
lion per rate year. The Company absorbed $14.0, $13.3 and 
$21.4 million for each of the years; ended December 31, 1990, 
1989 and 1988, respectively.
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Federal Income Taxes: In accordance with PSC requirements, 
the tax effect of book and tax timing differences is flowed 
through except as required by the Internal Revenue Code or 
unless authorized by the PSC to be deferred. The Company 
provides deferred taxes on certain benefits realized from 
depreciation, on deferred energy and purchased gas costs, on 
nuclear fuel disposal costs accrued prior to April 1983, on 
nuclear generating plant decommissioning costs, on certain 
construction overheads and on certain other items (see Note 
9). As directed by the PSC, the Company defers any amounts 
payable pursuant to the alternative minimum tax rules. In con
formity with ratemaking practices of the PSC, the Company 
has not provided deferred taxes on the cumulative amount 
of approximately $1.6 billion of other tax deductions which 
include certain depreciation differences and various construc
tion overheads deductible when incurred or allocated for tax 
purposes and capitalized and depreciated for accounting and 
ratemaking purposes. The Company has claimed investment 
tax credits and deferred the benefits of such credits as realized 
in accordance with PSC directives. Deferred investment credit 
is amortized to Other Income and Deductions over the useful 
life of the underlying property For purposes of computing 
capital cost recovery deductions and normalization, the asset 
basis has been reduced by all or a portion of the credit claimed 
consistent with then current tax laws.  

Since it is the Company's intention to reinvest the undistrib
uted earnings of its foreign subsidiaries, no provision is made 
for federal income taxes on these earnings. At December 
31, 1990, the cumulative amount of undistributed earnings of 
foreign subsidiaries on which the Company has not provided 
deferred taxes was approximately $110 million.  

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has 
issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96, 
No. 100 and No. 103 (SFAS No. 96, No. 100 and No. 103) 
"Accounting for Income Taxes" which will require the adoption 
of the 'provisions of SFAS No. 96 for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 1991. The pronouncements continue the present 
comprehensive inter-period tax allocation rules, but shift to the 
use of the liability method for accounting for deferred taxes 
rather than the deferred method required under Accounting 
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 11. Regulated utilities are 
not exempt from the provisions of SFAS No. 96, which specifi
cally prohibit net-of-tax accounting and reporting and require 
(i) recognition of a deferred tax liability for tax benefits that are 
flowed through to customers when temporary differences orig
inate and (ii) adjustment of a deferred tax liability or asset for 
an enacted change in tax laws or rates. The FASB is currently 
considering issuance of an Expo~ure Draft addressing a delay 
in the effective date of SFAS No. 96 as well as amendments to 
the measurement of deferred tax assets. The FASB is also 
considering a requirement for public utilities to adjust any 
remaining plant- in-servi ce balances that reflect net-of-tax AFC
to a pre-tax basis and record the appropriate amount of de
ferred taxes. Such an adjustment would increase plant-in
service and deferred tax liability on the balance sheet.  

Any impact of the pronouncement and the proposed 
amendments. should be considered within the ratesetting 
environment. The adoption of the requirements of SFAS No. 96 
is not expected to significantly impact the Company's results of 
operations. However, the adoption of the pronouncements may 
have a significant impact on the Company's balance sheet, 
with the recording of deferred tax liabilities and regulatory 
assets associated with previously flowed-through tax benefits.  

Amortization of Debt Issue Costs: The premium or discount and 
debt expenses on long-term debt issues -and on certain debt 
retirements prior to maturity are amortized ratably over the

lives of the related issues and included in interest on long-term 
debt (See Note 6).  

Statement of Cash Flows: The Company considers all highly 
liquid investments, purchased with a remaining maturity of 
three months or less, to be cash equivalents.  

Reclassifications: Certain amounts have been reclassified on 
the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements to con
form with the 1990 presentation.  

NOTE 2. Depreciation and Amortization 

The total provision for depreciation and amortization, includ
ing amounts charged to clearing accounts, was $222,055,000 
for 1990, $212,067,000 for 1989, and $223,198 '000 for 1988.  
The 1988 provision includes approximately $39,813,000 
resulting from the amortization of costs associated with the 
discontinued Lake Erie Generating Station Project in accord
ance with the 1988 Stipulation Agreement which permitted the 
Company to offset'such amortization with the recognition in 
electric operating revenues of an equivalent amount of unbilled 
electric revenues. The percentage relationship between the 
total provision for depreciation and average depreciable prop
erty was 2.9% for 1990 and 1989, and 2.7% in 1988. The 
Company performs depreciation studies on a continuing basis 
and, upon approval by the PSC, periodically adjusts the rates 
of its various classes of depreciable property.  

Also included within the annual provision for depreciation 
and amortization for each of the years ended December 31, 
1990, 1989 and 1988 was approximately $4.8, $4.5 and $4.2 
million, respectively, for decommissioning Unit 1 and the Com
pany's share of the cost of decommissioning Unit 2. (See Note 
10. "Nuclear Decommissioning").  

NOTE 3. N M Uranium, Inc.  

During 1976, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, N M Ura
nium, Inc. (NMU), the Company purchased a 50 percent undi
vided interest in uranium deposits and associated mining 
equipment to be held by a jointly-owned mining venture.  
Acquisition of this interest was made primarily to provide a 
more assured future supply of nuclear fuel. Mining operations 
are now complete and site restoration activities are underway 
and expected to continue into the late 1990's. The investment 
in the subsidiary, which includes costs incurred since acquisi
tion and AFC accrued through March 31, 1981. has been re
duced by the proceeds from the sale of uranium, net of tax, 
transfers of uranium to the Company and write-offs of portions 
of the Company's investment, and is included in the consoli
dated financial statements as part of the nuclear fuel compo
nent of utility plant. Such investment, net of valuation reserves 
of approximately $50 million and $35 million at December 31, 
1990 and 1989, respectively, totaled $15.5 million at December 
31, 1990 and $301 million at December 31, 1989. The net 
investment balance represents the estimated recoverable 
value of the remaining uranium inventory Approximately 
955,000 pounds of NMU uranium remain to be transferred, with 
the final transfer currently scheduled for 1993. In order to 
reduce the carrying costs of this inventory nearly all of the 
uranium inventory is being loaned. The loan agreements pro
vide for repayment in kind and include certain guarantees 
which, in the Company's opinion, will assure such repayment.
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In connection with the Company's ra te decisions and 
agreements since 1984, the PSC has allowed, as the cost of 
approximately 1,314,000 lbs. of NMU uraniumr utilized at Unit 1 
and approximately 294,000 lbs. utilized at Unit 2, a price which 
represents the average United States delivery price for the year 
of transfer, as reported by the U.S. Department of Energy 
(DOE). The total allowed value of these transfers using DOE 
prices i s approximately $50.0 million while the Company's cost 
is approximately $72.0 million. The differential between the 
Company's cost of this NMU uranium and that amount allowed 
to be recovered in rates charged to customers has been 
deferred for regulatory purposes subject to the PSC approval 
of the comparison of cost to market on an'aggregate basis 
over the life of the project and is included in the Company's 
investment in NMU for purposes of establishing a necessary 
valuation reserve for unrecovered costs.

Based upon DOE's uranium price reports which reflect a 
continued decline in average delivery prices and the antici
pated further decline in average delivery prices, the Company 
expects that, based upon costs allowed in rates to date and the 
estimated transfer value of remaining inventory, a minimum of 
$50 million of its investment in NMU may not be recoverable in 
rates. Accordingly, the Company reduced the carrying value of 
such investment by $15 million in 1990, $14.5 million in 1989, 
$75 million in 1988 and $13 million prior to 1988. The Company 
can provide no assurance that all of its remaining investment in 
NMU will ultimately be recovered; however, if the remaining 
955,000 pounds of uranium were transferred at the January 1, 
1991 spot market price of $9.70/pound (contrasted with the 
last reported DOE price of $19.56/pound), an additional 
reserve of approximately $5 million would be necessary.

NOTE 4. Bank Credit Arrangements 

At December 31,1990, the Company had $617 million of bank 
credit arrangements with 24 banks. These credit arrangements 
consisted of $180 million in commitments under Revolving 
Credit Agreements, $100 million Direct Pay Letter of Credit 
Facility and Revolving Credit Agreement for Oswego Facilities 
Trust, $56 million in one-year commitments under Credit 
Agreements, $181 million in lines of credit and $100 million 
under a Bankers Acceptance Facility Agreement. The Revolv
ing Credit Agreements extend into 1991 and 1992, and the 
interest rate applicable to borrowing is based on certain rate 
options available under the Agreements. All of the other bank 
credit arrangements are subject to review on an ongoing basis 
with interest rates negotiated at the time of use. The Company 
also issues commercial paper. Unused bank credit facilities are 
held available to support the amount of commercial paper 
outstanding, including amounts currently issued in connection 
with Interest Rate Exchange Agreements (See Note 6).  

The Company pays fees for substantially all of its bank credit 
arrangements. The Bankers Acceptance Facility Agreement, 
which is used to finance the fuel inventory for the Company's 
generating stations, provides for the payment of fees only at 
the time of issuance of each acceptance.  

Amounts outstanding under Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreements and Revolving Credit Agreements totaled $75 
million at December 31, 1990 and are recorded as long-term 
debt due within one year.  

The following table summarizes additional information 
applicable to short-term debt: 

In thousands of dollars 
At December 31: 1990 1989 
Short-term debt.  

Notes payable................ $ 10,303 $ 5,000 
Bankers acceptances ........... 55,609 30,671 

$ 65,912 $ 35,671 
Weighted average interest rate (a). .. . '10.06% 11.40% 

For Year Ended December 31: 
Daily average outstanding ......... $ 39,329 $ 80,583 
Monthly weighted average 

interest rate (a)................. 8.17% 9.62% 
Maximum amhount outstanding .... $ 90,748 $249,300 
(a) Excluding fees.

NOTES5. Jointly-Owned Generating Facilities 

The following table reflects the Company's share of jointly
owned generating facilities at December 31, 1990. The Com
pany is required to provide its respective share of financing for 
any additions to the facilities. Power output and related ex
penses are shared based on proportionate ownership. The 
Company's share of expenses associated with these facilities 
is included in the appropriate operating expenses in the Con
solidated Statements of Income.

Percentage 
owner

ship

In thousands of dollars 
Construction 

Utility Accumulated work in 
plant depreciation progress

Roseton Steam 
Station Units 
No. 1 
and 2 (a) ... 25 $ 84,340 $35,935 $ 613 

Oswego Steam 
Station Unit 
No. 6 (b) ... 76 $ 263,908 $79,169 $ 1,055 

Nine Mile Point 
Nuclear 
Station Unit 
No. 2(c) ... 41 $1,468,404 $95,349 $17,286 

(a) The remaining ownership interests are Central Hudson Gas 
and Electric Corporation, the operator of the plant (35%) 
and Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc.  
(40%). Central Hudson Gas and Electric Corporation has 
agreed to acquire the Company's 25% interest in the plant 
in ten equal installments of 2.5% (30 mw.) starting on 
December 31, 1994 and on each December 31 thereafter.  
The agreement is subject to PSC approval.  

(b) The Company is the operator. The remaining ownership 
interest is Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation (24%) 
Output of Oswego Unit No. 6, which has a capability of 
850,000 kw., is shared in the same proportions as the 
cotenants' respective ownership interests.  

(c) The Company is the operator. The remaining ownership 
interests are Long Island Lighting Company (18%), New 
York State Electric and Gas Corporation (18%), Rochester 
Gas and Electric Corporation (14%), and Central Hud
son Gas and Electric Corporation (9%). Output of Unit 2, 
which has a capability of 1,084,000 kw, is shared in the 
same proportions as the cotenants' respective owner
ship interests.
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NOTE 6. Capitalization 
CAPITAL STOCK 

The Company is authorized to issue 150,000,000 shares of common stock, $1 par value; 3,400,000 shares of preferred 
stock, $100 par value; 19,600,000 shares of preferred stock, $25 par value; and 8,000,000 shares of preference stock, 
$25 par value. The table below summarizes changes in the capital stock issued and outstanding and the related capital accounts 
for 1988, 1989 and 1990: .Preferred Stock

Common Stock 
$1 par value

$100 par value 

Non
Redeem- Redeem-

$25 par value

Redeem- Redeem-
Shares Amount* Shares able* able* Shares able* able* (NetY 

Balance January 1, 1988: '128,953,424 $128,953 2,927,000 $210,000 $82,700(a) 14,710,801 $80,000 $287,770(a) $1,548,826 
Issued to stock purchase 
plans in 1988 ........... 6,679,672 6,680 83,937 

Redemptions ...... (283,000) - (28,300) (1,147,199) - (28,680) 672 
Foreign currency 
translation adjustment . .. . 7,158 

Balance December 31,1988: 135,633,096 135,633 2,644,000 210,000 54,400(a) 13,563,602 80,000 259,090(a) 1,640,593 
Issued to stock purchase 
plans in 1989 ............. 466,558 467 5,375 

Redemptions ...... (58,000) - (5,800) (887,199) - (22,180) 137 
Foreign currency 
translation adjustment . ... 3,180 

Balance December 31, 1989: 136,099,654 136,100 2,586,000 210,000 48,600(a) 12,676,403 80,000 236,91 0(a) 1,649,285 
Redemptions ...... (38,000) - (3,800) (887,199) - (22,180) 115 
Foreign currency 
translation adjustment . . .. (106) 

Balance December 31, 1990: 136,099,654 $136,100 2,548,000 $210,000 $44,800(a) 11,789,204 $80,000 $214,730(a) $1,649,294 

*In thousands of dollars (a) Includes sinking tund requirements due within one year 
The cumulative amount of foreign currency translation adjustment at December 31,1990 was $8,046.  

NON-REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK (Optionally Redeemable) 

The Company has certain issues of preferred stock which provide for optional redemption as follows: 

Redemption price per share 
(Before adding accumulated dividends) 

In thousands of dollars December 31, Eventual 
Series Shares At December 31, 1990 1989 1990 minimum 

Preferred $100 par value: 
3.40% 200,000 ........................ $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $103.50 $103.50 
3.60% 350,000......................... 35,000 35,000 104.85 104.85 
3.90% 240,000................... ...... 24,000 24,000 106.00 106.00 
4.10% 210,000......................... 21,000 21,000 102.00 102.00 
4.85% 250,000......................... 25,000 25,000 102.00 102.00 
5.25% 200,000......................... 20,000 20,000 102.00 102.00 
6.10% 250,000......................... 25,000 25,000 101.00 101.00 
7.72% 400,000......................... 40,000 40,000 103.51 102.36 

Preferred $25 par value: 
Adjustable Rate 
SeriesA 1,200,000......................... 30,000 30,000 25.75 25.00 
Series C 2,000,000......................... 50,000 50,000 25.75 25.00 

$290,000 $290,000 

MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK 

The Company has certain issues of preferred stock which require mandatory sinking funds for annual redemption and provide 
optional sinking funds through which the Company may redeem, at par, a like amount of additional shares (limited to 120,000 
shares of the 745% series and 300,000 shares of the 9.75% series). The option to redeem additional amounts is not cumulative.  
The Company's five year mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements for preferred stock, in thousands, for 1991 through 
1995 are as follows: $17,980; $24,980; $31,230; $31,230; and $31,230, respectively.

Capital Stock 
Premium and 

Expense
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These series provide for mandatory and optional redemption as follows:

Shares 
Series 1990 1989 A 

Preferred $100 par value: 
7.45% 348,000 366,000 .....  

10.60% 100,000 120,000 ....  

Preferred $25 par value: 
8.375r% 800,000 900,000 ..  
8.70% 1,000,000 1,000,000 ..  
8.75% 3,000,000 3,000,000 ..  
9.75% 474,000 540,000 ..  

10.75% 320,000 960,000 ..  
12.25% 527,760 570,820 ..  
12.50% 467,444 505,583 ..  
Adjustable Rate 

Series B 2,000,000 2,000,000 ..

t December 31, 

...........  
............  

...........  

...........  

...........  

...........  

...........  

...........  

...........

Less sinki ng fund redemption requirements . .....

In thousands of dollars 
1990 1989

$ 34,800 
10,000 

20,000 
25,000 
75,000 
11,850 

8,000 
13,194 
11,686 

50,000 
259,530 

17,980 
$241,550

$ 36,600 
12,000 

22,500 
25,000 
75,000 
13,500 
24,000 
14,270 
12,640 

50,000 
285,510 

17,980 
$267,530

Redemption price per share 
(Before adding accumulated dividends) 

December31, Eventual 
1990 minimum

$103.37 $100.00 
105.30 102.65

25.77 
(a) 
(a) 

25.65 
25.60 

(b) 
(b) 

25.75

25.00 
25.00 
25.00 
25.00 
25.00 
25.00 
25.00 

25.00

(a) Not redeemable until 1992.  
(b) Not redeemable until 1991.

LONG-TERM DEBT 
Long-term debt and long-term debt due within one year at December 31, consisted of the following: 

In thousands of dollars
Series Due 

First mortgage bonds: 
43/4% 1990 ...........  
41/2% 1991 ............  

12.73% 1992 ...........
1992 ...........

Total First Mortgage Bonds..

1990 1989

$ - $ 50,000 
40,000 40,000 
30,000 30,000 
50,000 50,000 
20,000 20,000 

- 50,000 
150,000 150,000 
40,000 40,000 

100,000 100,000 
45,000 45,000 

100,000 100,000 
40,000 40,000 

200,000 200,000 
60,000 60,000 

100,000 100,000 
100,000 100,000 
75,000 75,000 

150,000 
- 42,669 

65,000 65,000 
100,000 100,000 
80,000 80,000 
80,000 80,000 
80,000 80,000 
38,236 41,177 
65,000 75,000 

150,000 
26,000 29,000 
66,640 66,640 
34,000 36,000 
75,690 75,690 
40,015 40,015 

150,000 150,000 
100,000 100,000 
75,000 75,000 

$2,525,581 $2,386,191

Promissory notes: 
*8% Series A due June 1, 2004 ....  
*Adjustable Rate Series due 

July 1, 2015 ...............  
December 1, 2023 ..........  
December 1, 2025 ..........  
December 1, 2026 ..........  
March 1, 2027.............  
July 1, 2027 ..............  

Unsecured notes payable: 
Medium Term Notes, Various 

rates, due 1990-2004 ........  
Swiss Franc Bonds 

due December 15,1995 .......  
15.02% Unsecured Notes 

due 1990................  
Notes, Interest Rate 

Exchange Agreement ........  

Revolving credit agreement, 
Oswego Facilities Trust..  

Other ....................  

Unamortized premium 
(discount)...............

In thousands of dollars 
1990 1989 

46,100 46,600

100,000 
69,800 
75,000 
50,000 
25,760 
93,200

100,000 
69,800 
75,000 
50,000 
25,760 
93,200

222,100 251,100 

50,000 50,000 

- 50,000 

50,000 50,000 

85,050 63,700 

138,465 135,512 

(1,519) (1,027)

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT ...... 3,529,537 3,445,836 
Less long-term debt due 

within one year ............... 216,251 196,508 
$3,313,286 $3,249,328

T ax-exempt pollution control related issues 
**Retired prior to maturity

13.06% 
12.68% 

91/8% 

61/2% 

101/4% 

91/8% 
91/2% 

*12.95% 

91/4% 

73/4% 
81/4% 
91/2% 

9.95% 
93 /4% 

10.20% 
8.35% 

*111/4% 

10% 
10%

1992 
1993 
1994 
1994 
1996 
1996 
1997 
1997 
1998 
1998 
1999 
1999 
1999 
2000 
2000 
2001 
2001 
2002 
2002 
2003 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2005 
2007 
2007 
2014 
2014 
2016 
2016 
2025
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Several series of First Mortgage Bonds and Notes were 
issued to secure a like amount- of tax-exempt revenue bonds 
and notes issued by the New York State Energy Research and 
Development Authority (NYSERDA). Approximately $414 mil
lion of such notes bear interest at a daily adjustable interest 
rate (with a Company option to convert to other rates including 
a fixed interest rate which would require the Company to issue 
First Mortgage Bonds to secure the debt) which averaged 
5.09% for 1990 and are supported by bank direct pay letters of 
credit. Pursuant to agreements between NYSERDA and the 
Company, proceeds from such issues were used for the 
purpose of financing the construction of certain pollution con
trol facilities at the Company's generating facilities.  

Notes Payable include a ten-year Swiss franc bond issue 
equivalent to $50 million in U.S. funds. Simultaneously with the 
sale of these bonds, the Company entered into a currency 
exchange agreement to fully hedge against currency exchange 
rate fluctuations.  

The Company has Interest Rate Exchange Agreements for 
$75 million which expire in 1991 ($50 million in January and 
$25 million in February). The agreements require the Company 
to make fixed rate payments which, calculated on a semi
annual bond basis, are equivalent to 758% and, in exchange, 
receive a LIBOR based floating rate payment from a bank. The 
Company generally uses its own bank credit facilities (See 
Note 4) as the source of funding. The related int erest expense 
is recorded on a net basis. Such Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreements include a $25 million agreement held by the 
Oswego Facilities Trust (Trust).  

The arrangements with the Trust provide financing for the 
construction of a new energy management system. The Trust 
has a $100 million -Direct Pay Letter of Credit Facility and 
Revolving Credit Agreement. Trust obligations are secured by 
certain assets held by the Trust. The Company is required to 
purchase, or otherwise arrange for, the disposition of the Trust 
assets upon the termination of the Trust. The Letter of Credit 
Facility and Revolving Credit Agreement of the Trust require 
payment of fees which are based upon the amount of 
commercial paper outstanding.  

Other long-term debt in 1990 consists of obligations under 
capital leases of approximately $56 million (See Note 11.  
"Lease Commitments') and a liability to the U.S. Department 
of Energy for nuclear fuel disposal of approximately $82.4 mil
lion. (See Note 10. "Nuclear Fuel Disposal Costs").  

Certain of the Company's debt securities provide for a man
datory sinking fund for annual redemption. The aggregate 
maturities of long-term debt for the five years subsequent to 
December 31, 1990, including mandatory sinking fund 
redemption requirements of approximately $13 million per year, 
are approximately $205 million, $169 million, $105 million, $213 
million and $78 million, respectively.  

Additionally, certain other series of mortgage b onds provide 
for a debt retirement fund whereby payment requirements may 
be met, in lieu of cash, by the certification of additional prop
erty, the waiver of the issuance of additional bonds or the re
tirement of outstanding bonds. The 1990 requirements for 
these series were satisfied by the certification of additional 
property. The Company anticipates that the 1991 requirements 
for these series will be satisfied by other than payment in cash.  
Total annual debt retirement fund requirements for these 
series, based upon mortgag e bonds outstanding at December 
31, 1990, are $6.05 million.

NOTE 7. Information Regarding the Electric 
and Gas Businesses 

The Company is engaged in the electric and natural gas 
utility businesses. Certain information regarding these seg
ments is set forth in the following table. General corporate 
expenses, property common to both segments and deprecia
tion of such common property have been allocated to the seg
ments in accordance with practice established for regulatory 
purposes. Identifiable assets include net utility plant, materials 
and supplies, deferred finance charges, deferred recoverable 
energy costs and certain other deferred debits. Corporate 
assets consist of other property and investments, cash, 
accounts receivable, prepayments, unamortized debt expense 
and other deferred debits.  

In thousands of dollars 
1990 1989 1988 

Operating revenues: 
Electric .......... $2,669,308 $2,418,662 $2,343,732 
Gas .............. 485,411 487,381 .456,721 

Total ...... $3,154,719 $2,906,043 $2,800,453 

Operating income before taxes: 
Electric .......... $ 522,947 $ 466,145 $ 564,275 
Gas .............. 50,228 50,917 46,528 

.Total ...... $ 573,175 $ 517,062 $ 610,803 

Pretax operating income, including AFC: 
Electric.......... $ 543,504 $ 484,706 $ 574,426 
Gas .............. 51,085 51,732 47,399 

Total ............ 594,589 536,438 621,825 
Income taxes ......... 121,114 105,103 134,451 
Other (income) and 

deductions ..... 71,728 (26,504) 6,358 
Interest charges .... 318,869 307,056 272,202 
Net income ........ $ 82,878 $ 150,783 $ 208,814 

Depreciation and amortization: 
Electric .......... $ 204,417 $ 195,372 $ 167,566 
Gas .............. 16,440 15,501 14,643 

Total ...... $ 220,857 $ 210,873 $ 182,209 

Construction expenditures 
(including nuclear fuel): 
Electric .......... $ 373,232 $ 358,390 $ 316,798 
Gas .............. 58,347 55,102 49,344 

Total ...... $ 431,579 $ 413,492 $ 366,142 

Identifiable assets: 
Electric .......... $6,435,401 $6,229,107 $5,910,897 
Gas .............. 610,648 581,900 539,309 

Total ........... 7,046,049 6,811,007 6,450,206 
-Corporate assets ... 724,265 751,465 625,835 

Total assets ..... $7,770,314 $7,562,472 $7,076,041
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NOTE 8. Pension and Other Retirement Plans 

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have non-con
tributory, defined-benefit pension plans covering substantially 
all their employees. Benefits are based on the employee's 
years of service and compensation level. The pension cost 
was $22.8 million for 1990, $18.8 million for 1989 and $26.0 
million for 1988 (of which $5.5 million for 1990, $5.0 million for 
1989 and $78 million for 1988 was related to construction labor 
and, accordingly, was charged to construction projects). The 
Company's general policy is to fund the pension costs accrued 
with consideration given to the maximum amount that can be 
deducted for Federal income tax purposes. In 1990, the Com
pany was unable to make a contribution to the pension plan 
due to applicable regulations for full funding limitations. Con
tributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attrib
uted to service to date but also for those expected to be 
earned in the future.  

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and 
amounts recognized in the Company's Consolidated Balance 
Sheets: 

In thousands of dollars 
At December 31, 1990 1989 

Actuarial present value of accumulated 
benefit obligations: 

Vested benefits ............... $336,944 $250,266 
Non-vested benefits ....... 3,706 43,338 

Accumulated benefit obligations ....... 340,650 293,604 
Additional amounts related to 

projected pay increases ...... 226,305 163,852 
Projected benefits obligation for 

service rendered to date ...... 566,955 457,456 
Plan assets at fair value, consisting 

primarily of listed stocks, bonds, 
other fixed income obligations and 
insurance contracts ........ 605,500 600,673 

Plan assets in excess of projected 
benefit obligations ................ 38,545 143,217 

Unrecognized net obligation at 
January 1, 1987 being recognized 
over approximately 19 years .......... 40,769 43,561 

Unrecognized net gain from past 
experience different from that 
assumed and effects of changes 
in assumptions .................. (55,859)1 (27,837) 

Gain from settlement of pension 
obligations...................... - (82,752) 

Prior service cost not yet recognized 
in net periodic pension cost ..... 30,238 340 

Prepaid pension costs included in 
other current assets and liabilities. . ... $ 53,693 $ 76,529 

In both 1990 and 19 89, the discount rate and rate of increase 
in future compensation levels used in determining the actuarial 
present value of the projected benefit obligations were 8.00% 
and 4.50% (plus merit increases), respectively The expected 
long-term rate of return on plan assets was 9.00% in 1990 
and 1989.

Net pension cost for 1990, 1989 and 1988 included the fol
lowing components: 

In thousands of dollars 
At December 31, 1990 1989 1988 

Service cost - benefits 
earned during the period .. $ 25,700 $ -21,600 $ 22,900 

Interest cost on projected 
benefit obligation ......... 39,100 42,200 56,300 

Actual return on 
Plan assets ............. (7,500) (108,000) (84,400) 

Deferral of asset gain 
or (loss) ............... (38,300) 60,200 28,400 

Amortization of net 
obligation ............... 3,800 2,800 2,800 
Net pension cost ..... $ 22,800 $ 18,800 $ 26,000

Included as an item of income is a portion of a 1989 pension 
settlement gain realized from the purchase of a group annuity 
relating to obligations to then existing retirees. The total gain 
from the pension settlement of approximately $83 million, 
which would generally be recognized immediately in earnings, 
was initially deferred pending future regulatory consideration.  
Pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, the Company began amor
tizing the pension settlement gain over an eighteen year period 
beginning in April 1989.  

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company and 
its subsidiaries provide certain health care and life insurance 
benefits for active and retired employees and dependents.  
Under current policies, substantially all of the Company's 
employees may be eligible for continuation of some of these 
benefits upon normal or early retirement. These benefits are 
provided through insurance companies whose charges and 
premiums are based on the claims -paid during the year. The 
cost of providing these benefits to retired employees amounted 
to approximately $14.9 million for 1990, $11.8 million for 1989 
and $12.6 million for 1988.  

In December 1990, the FASB issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 106 entitled "Employers' Accounting 
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions". This state
ment, which becomes effective in 1993, requires, among other 
things, accrual accounting by employers for postretirement 
benefits other than pensions reflecting currently earned bene
fits. The Company currently accounts for such costs on a cash 
basis for both active and retired employees. The Company 
estimates unfunded accumulated postretirement benefit obli
gations other than pensions may range between $300 and 
$400 million in the year of adoption depending primarily upon 
health care cost assumptions utilized in measuring the liability.  
The annual expense, using the same cost assumptions, may 
range from $45 to $65 million. The range of health care cost 
trend utilized is 6% to 8%. Recognition of net periodic postre
tirement benefit cost during the years that employees render 
necessary service will increase the annual expense from that 
currently recorded on a cash basis; however, the effect on the 
Company's financial condition of this statement is dependent 
upon the regulatory treatment afforded accrued postretire
ment costs.
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NOTE 9. Federal and Foreign Income Taxes 

Components of United States and foreign income before in
come taxes: 

In thousands of dollars 
1990 1989 1988 

United States ..... $141,129 $234,527 $322,814 
Foreign ................. 19861 24,704 16,485 
Consolidating eliminations. . (16,993) (18,115) (9,621) 
Income before 

income taxes ...... $143,997 $241,116 $329,678

Following is a summary of the components of Federal and foreign income tax and a reconciliation between the amount 
of Federal income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and the computed amount at the statu-
tory tax rate: In thousands of dollars

Y1990 1989 1988 
Components of Federal and foreign income taxes: 

Current tax expense: Federal.............................. $121,275 $ 24,627 $ 60,173 
Foreign.............................. (2,495) 4,728 998 

118,780 29,355' 61,171 
Deferred tax expense: Federal............................. (8,096) 70,851 66,996 

Foreign............................. 10,430 4,897 6,284 
2,334 75,748 73,280

Income taxes included in Operating Expenses .............  
Current Federal income tax credits included in 

Other Income and Deductions ......................  
Deferred Federal income tax expense (credits) included in 

Other Income and Deductions ............ ..........  
Total............................ . .........  

Components of deferred Federal and foreign income taxes (Note 1): 
Depreciation.............. ................ ......  
Investment tax credit ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Alternative minimum tax ............................  
Construction overheads ............................  
Recoverable energy and purchased gas costs .............  
Unbilled revenues.................................  
Deferred operating expenses ........................  
Deferred transmission revenues........................  
Nuclear settlement disallowance......................  
Reserve for NM Uranium, Inc.........................  
Other (net)....................... .........  

Deferred Federal income taxes (net) ..........  

Reconciliation between Federal and foreign income taxes and 
the tax computed at prevailing U.S. statutory rate on income 
before income taxes: 

Computed tax.................................  
Reduction (increase) attributable to flow-through of 

certain tax adjustments: 
Depreciation.......................... .........  
Allowance for funds used during construction ...........  Taxes, pensions and employee benefits capitalized for 

accounting purposes ...........................  
Real estate taxes on an assessment date basis ..........  

Deferred investment tax credit amortization ..............  
Other (net)......................................

Federal and foreign income taxes .....................

121,114 105,103 134,451 

(32,756) (24,755) (29,068) 

(27,239) 9,985 15,481 
$ 61,119 $ 90,333 $120,864

$ 84,591 
(4,014) 

(16,843) 
(10,324) 
(27,897) 
(13,898) 
24,146 
(6,569) 

(32,964) 
(5,013) 

(16,120) 

$ (24,905)

$ 90,920 
(9,116) 

(17,363) 
1,386 

25,987 
(6,686) 
4,698 

(3,796) 
(297) 

$ 85,733

$116,397 
(392) 

(33,786) 
(2,826) 
8,664 
4,912 

(1,964) 
(2,244) 

$ 88.761

$ 48,959 $ 81,979 $112,091 

(30,569) (30,645) (18,959) 
8,728 7,130 3,747 

1,934 (273) 3,929 
(500) 1,934 2,537 

7,820 9,381 10,092 
427 4,119 (10,119) 

(12,160) (8,354) (8,773) 
$ 61,119 $ 90,333 $120,864
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NOTE 10. Nuclear Operations 

The Company is the owner and operator of Nine Mile Point 
Nuclear Station Unit No. 1 (Unit 1) and the operator and a 41 % 
co-owner of Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station Unit No. 2 (Unit 2).  
Ownership of Unit 2 is shared with Long Island Lighting Com
pany (18%), New York State Electric & Gas Corporation (18%), 
Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation (14%), and Central 
Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (9%). Output of Unit 2, 
which has a design capability of 1,084,000 kw., is shared in the 
same proportions as the cotenants' respective ownership 
interests. For regulatory purposes, April 5, 1988 has been 
recognized as the commercial operation date for Unit 2. Unit 1 
has a design capability of 610,000 kw and was placed in com
mercial operation in 1969.  

Since December 1988, the Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station 
(Units 1 and 2) has been, and continues to be, categorized as 
requiring close monitoring by the Nuclear Regulatory Com
mission (NRC). Contingencies involving the Company's own
ership of these facilities are discussed below 

Institute of Nuclear Power Operations Evaluation: In August 
1990, the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations (INPO), an 
industry sponsored oversight group, performed a site evalua
tion of Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station (Units 1 and 2).  

INPO reported deficiencies in several key areas related to 
operator performance, enforcement of station standards, 
documentation of root causes of in-house events and engi
neering support of plant operations. Even though a number of 
these issues had been previously noted in the last INPO eval
uation, INPO did observe a strong commitment and positive 
attitude toward improving performance.  

The Company has provided to INPO a response to the 
findings and has made commitments to INPO to address 
those findings.  

Unit 1 Thirty-One Month Outage and Restart: U nit 1 commenced 
operations in 1969 and has operated at an average capacity 
factor in excess of 55% for the twenty-one year period through 
1990, including the effects of the outage discussed below.  
Unit 1 was taken out of service in December 1987 for repairs 
to its feedwater system. During those repairs, the Company 
decided to proceed from that outage into refueling of Unit 1, an 
activity that was previously scheduled to begin in March 1988.  
The Unit 1 outage was further extended to perform additional 
in-service inspections required under codes which are now 
effective and to perform a substantial amount of work to 
upgrade and refurbish the Unit.  

In July 1988, the Staff of the NRIC (NRC Staff) indicated that 
Unit 1 would not be allowed to restart until such time as a 
comprehensive plan addressing and rectifying the NRC Staff's 
concerns was developed and approval for restart was received 
from the NRC Staff.  
*The Company submitted a comprehensive Restart Action 
Plan to correct the root causes of the concerns raised by the 
NRC Staff to the NRC Region I Administrator which was 
approved on September 29, 1989. On July 13, 1990, the Com
pany submitted a report to the NRC Region I Administrator 

*indicating that the Company was prepared to restart Unit 1. On 
July 27, 1990, the Company received approval to restart Unit 1 
based on the NRC's determination that the Company had 
taken all necessary actions to ensure public health and safety.  
The process of restarting Unit 1 began on July 29, 1990. On 
October 23, 1990, the NRC granted approval to bring the Unit 
to full power. Since returning to full service in October 1990, 
Unit 1 has operated at an average capacity factor in excess of 
75% through December 31, 1990. On February 12, 1991, a 
malfunction in one of the turbine control systems caused

an automatic shutdown of Unit 1, and the Company decided 
to proceed into an eight-week mid-cycle outage, which was 
originally scheduled to begin on March 2, 1991, to conduct 
required inspections.  

PSC Investigation of the Unit 1 Thirty-One Month Outage: In May 
1988, the Attorney General of the State of New York filed a 
petition with the New York State Public Service Commission 
(PSC) requesting that the PSC, 1) order the Company to cease 
recovery of replacement power costs incurred by the Company 
as a result of the Unit 1 outage discussed above, 2) institute a 
proceeding to determine whether the Company should refund 
replacement power costs already collected and 3) remove Unit 
1 from the Company's rate base until Unit 1 returns to service.  
In an order issued in September 1988, the PSC instituted a 
proceeding, based upon its authority to order the refund of any 
imprudently incurred costs, to investigate the Unit 1 outage.  
The further relief sought by the Attorney General was denied 
subject to the possibility of being reconsidered at a later date.  

The Company, the Staff of the PSC (PSC Staff), the Attorney 
General, the New York State Consumer Protection Board 
(CPB) and Multiple Intervenors reached an interim relief 
agreement (the Interim Relief Agreement), which was 
approved by the PSC in an Order issued January 26, 1989. The 
Interim Relief Agreement provided that the Company, com
mencing with the fuel cost month of January 1989 until the 
earlier of restart of Unit 1 or June 30, 1989, would temporarily 
suspend collection from ratepayers of $225 thousand per day 
in replacement power costs through the fuel adjustment clause 
mechanism. This reduced the Company's cash flow during the 
term of the Interim Relief Agreement by approximately $40.7 
million and earnings per share during 1989 by approximately 
$.20. The Company also absorbed its share of any additional 
replacement power costs as provided for in the fuel adjustment 
clause mechanism, as well as the incremental operating 
expenses occasioned by the outage which were not provided 
for in rates.  

The Interim Relief Agreement prevented the need for the 
Company to litigate at that time the question of the responsi-' 
bility for replacement power costs during the outage and thus 
permitted continued concentration of the Company's resources 
in the effort to restart Unit 1. The Interim Relief Agreement did 
not resolve any issues of responsibility which may arise during 
the conduct of the prudence investigation and was not an 
admission of imprudence by the Company 

Unit 1 did not return to service by June 30, 1989 and the 
Interim Relief Agreement expired by its terms. The Company 
entered into an agreement (the 1989 Agreement) dated August 
31, 1989, with the Staff of the PSC, the New York Consumer 
Protection Board, the New York Attorney General and Multiple 
Intervenors. Pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, the parties 
thereto, and the PSC, agreed to, among other things, refrain 
from filing any request for cessation of the flow-through to 
customers of Unit 1 replacement power costs so. long as the 
1989 Agreement is in effect; however, suc *h costs collected 
remained subject to the Unit 1 outage prudence investiga
tion. With the expiration of the Interim Relief Agreement, the 
Company began collecting from customers and recording 
as revenue the replacement power costs incurred after 
June 30,1989.  

Based upon assumptions utilized in determining the amount 
of replacement power costs occasioned by the Unit 1 outage, 
the Company has estimated that, through the end of October 
1990, when Unit 1 returned to full service, it has collected from 
ratepayers approximately $195 million of increased fuel 
adjustment clause revenues. These revenues are subject to 
full or partial refund if the Company is found to have acted 
imprudently in a way which caused or extended the outage.
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During the period of the outage, the Company has estimated 
that it has already absorbed approximately $68 million of 
replacement power costs, including amounts not collected 
pursuant to the Interim Relief Agreement, and approximately 
$132 million of incremental Unit 1 operating and maintenance 
costs generally occasioned by the outage, which are in excess 
of amounts provided for in the rate setting process. The precise 
amount of replacement power costs incurred for. any given 
period depends upon seasonal factors, relative demand and 
availability of capacity, as well as assumptions utilized in esti
mating replacement power costs incurred during the outage.  
During the period of the outage, replacement power costs 
have averaged approximately $328,000 per day, determined 
by using a New York Power Pool/Canadian supplier average 
cost per KWH.  

The Company reached an agreement with certain other 
parties as to a temporary annual rate increase, which was 
'effective January 1, 1991 and resulted in an increase in electric 
rates of $162.8 million and a $272 million increase in gas rates.  
For the purpose of establishing these temporary rates, certain 
assumptions were made relating to issues under negotiation 
pursuant to the 1989 Agreement, including a liability to cus
tomers of approximately $130 million for Unit 1 and Unit 2 
replacement power costs ($18 million of which reflects the 
terms of the 1990 Unit 2 Settlement discussed below under 
Unit 2 Ratemaking and Cost Settlement; Refueling Outage), a 
write-off of $10 million of deferred capacity charges occa
sioned by the Unit 1 outage, and a reduction in the allowed 
return on equity from 12.5% to 11.5% in the first rate year to 
begin returning these funds to customers. These assumptions, 
along with others that supported the 1990 Temporary Rate 
Agreement, have been confirmed in the 1991 Stipulation which 
establishes permanent rates for the period July'1, 1990 to 
December 31, 1992. The 1991 Stipulation is subject to PSC 
approval, which is expected prior to July 1, 1991. The Company 
accrued the loss associated with the estimated customer lia
bility related to Unit 1 replacement power costs, as well as the 
loss related to the 1990 Unit 2 Settlement Agreement based 
upon management's assessment of the probable approval by 
the PSC of the multiyear rate plan, prudence issues and ex
pected level and conditions of the incentive return mechanism, 
as well as the approval by the PSC of the temporary rate 
increase on December 19, 1990.. The Company is unable to 
predict whether the PSC will approve the 1991 Stipulation; 
however, the Company believes that based upon the partici
pation of the PSC Staff and other intervenors in the negotiating 
process, any adjustment relative to replacement power cost 
liability that might result from PSC approval of the 1991 Stipu
lation should not have a significant effect on the Company's 
financial condition or results of operations.  

Unit 2 Ratemaking and Cost Settlement,- Refuelin g Outage: A 
settlement of a PSC proceeding to investigate the prudence of 
costs incurred for the construction of Unit 2 was approved in 
1986. The cost settlement established a cap on the allowed 
rate base cost of Unit 2; however, certain issues arose regard
ing the subsequent implementation of the cost settlement. In 
June 1990, the Company and cotenant companies reached a 
settlement (1990 Unit 2 Settlement) with the PSC Staff and 
other intervenors with respect to such Unit 2 settlement cap 
issues, allocation of net contractor litigation proceeds, Unit 2 
operating prudence and established a mechanism for setting 
prospective operating and maintenance costs. The 1990 Unit 2 
Settlement was approved by the PSC on October 24, 1990.  
The 1990 Unit 2 Settlement established a final level of allowed 
Unit 2 'costs and estops the PSC from asserting that future 
capital additions are subject to the 1986 Unit 2 cost settlement.  
Further, all proceeds from both settled and .active Unit 2 con-
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tractor litigation (as discussed in "Unit 2 Contractor Litigation' 
below), after deductions from such proceeds of the associated 
litigation costs, will be allocated equally between shareholders 
and ratepayers. Based upon the Unit 2 loss recognized in -1987 
with the Company's adoption of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 90 and the terms of the 1990 Unit 2 
Settlement, the Company reduced its Unit 2 project cost disa17 
lowance reserve in 1990 by approximately $6 million, before 
federal income taxes. The Company accrued in 1990 a loss for 
the future refund of replacement power costs with respect 
to the first year of Unit 2 operation, as established in the 1990 
Unit 2 Settlement Agreement, in the amount of $18 million, 
before federal income tax.  

Unit 2's first refueling outage began on September 5, 1990 
and was expected to be completed by mid-December. How
ever, the outage was extended into January 1991 as a result of 
increased work scope. On January 30, 1991, Unit 2 returned 
to service.  

Based on the results of an Inservice Inspection on -the Unit, a 
potential weld defect was identified on a nozzle to pipe weld.  
Technical measures were taken to mitigate future growth of the 
potential weld defect; however, it has been agreed between the 
Company and the NRC that the weld will be reinspected within 
five to nine months of returning the Unit to service after the 
completion of the current outage. Performing this inspection 
would require a shutdown of the Unit for ten days. The Com
pany is currently evaluating alternatives which could mitigate 
this outage duration.  

The next refueling outage for Unit 2 is expected to begin on 
February 29, 1992.  

Unit 2 Contractor Litigation: On August 1, 1988, the Company 
and the cotenant companies initiated a lawsuit in federal court 
in Syracuse, New York, against three corporations involved in 
the construction of Unit 2, Stone & Webster Engineering Corp.  
(SWEC) (the arch itect-eng inee r and construction manager for 
Unit 2), ITT Fluid Products Corp. and ITT Fluid Technology 
Corp. (successor companies to ITT Grinnell, a major piping 
contractor for Unit 2). The lawsuit seeks damages for, among 
other things, breach of contractual and professional obligations 
in their performance under their contracts which resulted in 
delays and cost overruns. SWEC has filed its answer which 
disagrees with the Company's claim. The ITT defendants have 
filed an answer, also disputing the allegations of the Company 
and cotenants. Their answer includes an allegation against the 
Company and the cotenants, that all claims are barred by 
contract close-out agreements. The ITT defendants are re
questing dismissal of the complaint, and judgment in their favor 
on the counterclaim, in such amount as they may prove at trial, 
together with interest and costs. The Company is unable to 
predict the outcome of the litigation.  

Based on the 1990 Unit 2 Settlement approved by the PSC 
Staff discussed above under 'Unit 2 Ratemaking and Cost 
Settlement", proceeds of the 1990 litigation settlement regard
ing Main Steam Isolation Valves and the proceeds, if any, of the 
litigation against SWEC, ITT Fluid Products Corporation, and 
ITT Fluid Technology Corporation, after deducting the asso
ciated litigation costs, will be combined and allocated equally 
between *shareholders and ratepayers.  

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning: Based on a 1989 study, the 
cost of decommissioning Unit 1, which is expected to begin in 
the year 2005, is estimated by the Company to be approxi
mately $446 million at that time ($222 million in 1990 dollars).  
The Company's 41 % share of the total cost to decommission
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Unit 2, which is expected to begin in the year 2027, is estimated 
by the Company to be approximately $540 million ($94 million 
in 1990 dollars). Effective January 1, 1991, with the approval of 
a temporary rate increase of $190 million, an annual allowance 
was reflected to decommission each Unit based upon the cost 
of decommissioning estimates noted above. The temporary 
rate increase is subject to adjustment based upon the resolu
tion of permanent rate negotiations. Through December 31, 
1990, the Company has recovered approximately $40.5 million 
of decommissioning costs in rates for both units and these 
amounts have been considered in establishing the annual 
decommissioning allowances needed to decommission the 
units. The Company continues to review the estimated 
requirements for decommissioning and plans to seek rate 
adjustments when appropriate. There is no assurance that the 
decommissioning allowance recovered in rates will ultimately 
aggregate a sufficient amount to decommission the units. The 
Company believes that decommissioning costs, if higher than 
currently estimated, will ultimately be recovered in the rate, 
process, although no such assurance can be given.  

The NRC issued regulations in 1988 requiring owners of 
nuclear power plants to place funds to provide for the cost 
of decommissioning activit ies of contaminated portions of 
nuclear facilities into an external trust. Further, the NRC 
established guidelines for determining minimum amounts that 
must be available in such a trust for these specified decom
missioning activities at the time of decommissioning. Based 
upon studies applying the NRIC guidelines, the Company has 
estimated that the minimum requirements for Unit 1 and its 
share of Unit 2, respectively, will be $344 million and $446 mil
lion in future dollars. As of December 31, 1990, the Company 
had deposited in an external trust $3.3 million for Unit 1 and 
$.4 million for its share of Unit 2. Annual amounts necessary to 
meet the minimum NRC funding requirements have been 
reflected in the 1990 Temporary Rate Increase discussed 
above. The Company has also included annual amounts con
sistent with the minimum funding requirements in its request 
for rate relief filed with the PSC in January 1991 pursuant to 
negotiation of rate awards for the years ended June 30, 1992 
and 1993. The Company can provide no assurance that the 
PSC will approve the level of allowance reflected in the first rate 
year, or i n the second and third rate years. On July 26, 1990, 
the Company filed a decommissioning report for each Unit with 
the NRC which included the proposed funding plan. On March 
1, 1989, the PSC issued an order requesting comments from 
utilities in connection with a generic proceeding to examine the 
funding and taxation aspects of accumulating nuclear decom
missioning funds in an external trust in response to the NRC 
regulations. The Company has responded to the order and is 
awaiting final resolution of this matter by the PSC.  

Nuclear Liability Insurance: Under the Price-Anderson Amend
ments Act of 1988, (the Act), the public liability limit with 
respect to a nuclear accident at a licensed reactor is approxi
mately $7.5 billion, with the excess over commercially available 
insurance to be funded by assessments of up to $63 million 
per licensed facility for each nuclear incident, payable at a rate 
not to exceed $10 million per year. Such assessments are 
subject to periodic inflation-indexing and to a 5% surcharge if 
funds prove insufficient to pay claims. The Company's interest 
in Units 1 and 2 could expose it to a potential loss, for each 
accident, of $88.8 million through assessments of $14.1 million 
per year in the event of a sufficiently serious nuclear accident 
at its own or another U.S. commercial nuclear reactor. The Act 
also provides, among other things, that insurance and indem
nity will cover precautionary evacuations whether or not a 
nuclear incident actually occurs.

Nuclear Fuel Disposal Cost In January 1983, the Nuclear Waste 
Policy. Act of 1982 (Act) was passed into law. The Act estab
lished a cost of $.001 per kilowatt-hour of net generation for 
current disposai of nuclear fuel and provides for a determina
tion of the Company's liability to the DOE for the disposal of 
nuclear fuel irradiated prior to 1983. The Act also provides 
three payment options for liquidating such liability and the 
Company has elected to delay payment, with interest, until 
1998, the year in which the Company had initially planned to 
ship irradiated fuel to an approved DOE disposal facility. Prog
ress in developing the DOE facility has been slow and it is 
anticipated that the DOE facility would not be ready to accept 
deliveries until 2010. The Company has several viable alterna
tives under consideration that will provide additional storage 
facilities, as necessary. Each alternative will likely require NRC 
approval and may require other regulatory approvals. The 
Company does not believe that the possible unavailability of 
the DOE disposal facility until 2010 will inhibit operation, of 
either Unit.  

NOTE 11. Commitments and Contingencies 

Construction Program: The Company is committed to an on
going construction program to assure reliable delivery of its 
electric and gas services. The Company presently estimates 
that the construction program for the years 1991 through 1995 
will require approximately $2.32 billion, excluding AFC, nuclear 
fuel and certain overheads capitalized. For the years 1991 
through 1995, the estimates are $443 million, $452 million, 
$469 million, $502 million and $453 million, respectively. These 
amounts are expected to be reviewed by management in 1991 
and thereafter on a regular basis.  

Long-term Contracts for the Purchase of Electric Power: At 
January 1, 1991, the Company had long-term contracts to pur
chase electric power from the following generating facilities 
owned by the New York Power Authority (NYPA):

Expiration 
date of

Purchased 
capacity

Estimated 
annual

Facility contract in kw. capacity cost 

Niagara
hydroelectric project .. 2007 904,000 $16,781,000 

St. Lawrence 
hydroelectric project .. 2007 104,000 1,248,000 

Blenheim-Gilboa 
pumped storage 
generating station ...... 2002 270,000 7,452,000 

FitzPatrick 
nuclear plant ........ year-to- 63,000(a) 6,110,000 

year basis 
1,341,000 $31,591,000 

(a) 24,000 kw for summer of 1991; 51,000 kw for winter of 1991-92.  

The purchase capacities shown above are based on the 
contracts currently in effect. The estimated annual capacity 
costs are subject to price escalation and are exclusive of 
applicable energy charges. Total cost of purchases under 
these contracts amounted to $572 million, $52.8 million and 
$46.3 million for the years 1990, 1989 and 1988, respectively.  

Under the requirements of the Federal Public Utility Regu
latory Policies Act, the Company is required to purchase power 
generated by Qualifying Facilities, as defined therein. Approxi
mately $198 million was paid to Qualifying Facilities in 1990 for
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3,041,000,000 kwh of energy and associated capacity. Through 
December 31,1990, the Company has entered into agreements 
with numerous current and prospective independent produc
ers, including Qualifying Facilities, which may substantially 
increase its future purchase power commitments. The amount 
of the commitment and the available capacity are dependent 
upon the ultimate completion of these projects. Based upon 
contacts entered into and approved to date, the Company will 
be obligated to purchase the power generated by these facili
ties having an aggregate amount of capacity in each of the 
following periods: 1,044 MW in 1991, 1,695 MW in 1992, 2,391 
MW in 1993, 2,973 MW in 1994 and 3,013 MW in 1995. Gener
ally, the Company must only pay for energy delivered.  

Lease Commitments: The Company leases certain property 
and equipment which meet the accounting criteria for capitali
zation. Such leases, having a net book value of $56.1 million 
and $59.3 million at December 31,1990 and 1989, respectively, 
are included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance 
Sheets. Since current rate-making practice treats all leases as 
operating leases, the capitalization of these leases has no 
impact on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Income.  
The Company recognizes as a charge against income an 
amount equal to the rental expense allowed for rate purposes.  
The Company's future minimum rental commitments under 
these capital leases and non-cancellable operating leases 
aggregate approximately $600 million, a substantial portion of 
which relates to a transmission line facility with an unelapsed 
term of 36 years. Annual future minimum rental commitments 
for the period 1991-1995 range between $22 million and 
$34 million.  

Sale of Customer Receivables: The Company has an agree
ment whereby it can sell an undivided interest in a designated 
pool of customer receivables including accrued unbilled elec
tric revenues up to a maximum of $200 million. At December 
31, 1990 and 1989, $200 and $177 million, respectively, of 
receivables had been sold under this agreement. The un
divided interest in the designated pooi of receivables was sold 
with limited recourse. For receivables sold, the Company has 
retained collection and administrative responsibilities as agent 
for the purchaser. As collections reduce previously sold 
undivided interests, new receivables are customarily sold.  

Litigation: Stockholder Derivative Suit: In May 1988, a stock.
holder derivative suit was commenced in the United States 
District Court, Northern District of New York, against certain 
members of the Board of Directors and several officers of the 
Company. The complaint purported to state claims on behalf of 
the Company for alleged violations of the Federal securities 
laws and state law in connection with Unit 2. The amount of 
damages claimed was not specified. In May 1989, the Dis trict 
Court dismissed all counts of the complaint.  

In October, 1990, the same plaintiffs commenced a stock
holder derivative action against the same defendants in New 
York State Supreme Court, Onondaga County, seeking to 
recover on behalf of the Company damages alleged to have 
arisen from the construction and operation of both Unit 1 and 
Unit 2. The amount of damages claimed was not specified.  
Discovery proceedings have commenced. The parties are 
continuing to pursue settlement of this action; however, the 
Company is unable to predict the outcome of the action or the 
impact, if any, on the Company's financial position or results 
of operations.  

As permitted by law and by its by-laws, the Company has 
indemnified its officers and directors for loss and expense, 
including judgments or settlements, incurred in connection

with the defense of such actions, and has directors and 
officers liability insurance to cover all or part of its indemnifi
cation obligations.  

Leveraged Preferred Stock Tax Reimbursement: The Company 
issued several series of leveraged preferred stock which con
tain tax reimbursement provisions that may apply if certain 
benefits contemplated by the arrangements are lost or become 
unavailable to the purchasers of the stock. In July 1989, the 
Company was notified that the arrangements were being 
challenged by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), pursuant to 
an audit of the purchasers' trusts for the year 1985. The Com
pany may be liable to the purchasers for reimbursement if the 
IRS is successful in any manner that results in a partial or 
complete loss of certain tax benefits. On January 9 and 11, 
1990, the Company received Indemnity Schedules from the 
purchasers of the Company's leveraged preferred stock series 
being challenged by the IRS. Applying the methodology set 
forth in the indemnity schedules, the Company's estimated 
liability for dividends paid through 1990 is approximately $41 
million. The Company has issued a letter to the Equity Partici
pants contesting the Indemnity Schedules and its potential lia
bility to the purchasers. The Company is unable to predict 
whether the IRS will be successful in its challenge or the extent 
of the Company's financial exposure if such challenge is suc
cessful. However, the Company believes any liability arising 
from resolution of these issues should be recovered in the 
ratesetting process.  

Environmental Issues: The Company is currently conducting a 
program to investigate and restore, as necessary to meet 
environmental standards, certain properties associated with a 
former gas manufacturing process and other properties which 
the Company has learned may be contaminated with industrial 
waste as well as investigating potential industrial waste sites to 
which it may be determined the Company contributed. The 
Company has been advised that various Federal, state or local 
agencies currently believe that certain properties warrant 
investigation. The Company is associated with approximately 
68 identified sites, of which 38 are Company-owned. Of the 38 
Company-owned sites, 24 are coal gasification sites and 14 are 
industrial Waste sites. Of these Company-owned sites, 14 are 
lited on the New York State Registry of Inactive Hazardous 
Waste Sites and 1 of the 14 is also on the Federal National 
Priorities List. The 30 remaining sites with which the Company 
is associated are generally alleged to be industrial waste sites 
to which the Company-may be required to contribute some 
proportionate share towards investigation and clean-up. Of 
these sites, 24 are included in the New York State Registry of 
Inactive Hazardous Waste Sites and 10 are on the Federal 
National Priorities List. The Company can provide no assur
ance that additional sites with which it is or may be associated 
will not be identified in the future as requiring investigation or 
remediation, or as to the Company's potential liability rela
tive thereto.  

The Company's investigations at each of the Company
owned sites are designed to (1) determine if environmental 
contamination problems exist, (2) determine the extent, rate of 
movement and concentration of pollutants, and (3) if neces
sary, determine the appropriate remedial actions required for 
site restoration. Site investigations may also include, where 
appropriate, identification of other parties who the Company 
believes should bear some, if not all, of the cost of remediation.  
After site investigations have been completed, the Company 
expects to be able to determine the remedial actions neces
sary and estimate the attendant costs for restoration. However, 
since the Company has not yet undertaken any remedial
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actions at any identified sites, nor have responsible regulatory 
agencies approved any of the Company's submitted remedia
tion plans, the ultimate cost of remedial actions may change 
substantially as investigation and remediation progresses.  

The Company has completed various phases of studies on 
seven Company-owned sites and has submitted those studies 
to the appropriate regulatory agency Based upon the findings 
of the studies and internal assessments of other sites the 
Company believes may require some level of remediation, total 
expenditures for Company-owned sites could approximate 
$300 million to be incurred through 2000. Of this amount, the 
Company believes that $29 million may be recoverable from 
other responsible parties, although the Company has not yet 
undertaken any -action against these other parties and can 
provide no assurance as to whether any amounts will actually 
be recovered. Of the 38 Company-owned sites, only 15 sites 
are anticipated to require clean-up. For sites where the Com
pany has not conducted any investigation, an estimate of 
clean-up costs of a 'typical' remediation effort, as developed 
by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), was utilized.  
Because the nature and extent of contamination varies from 
site to site, the total cost of remediation is likely to vary from the 
EPA estimate.  

With respect to other sites with which the Company is asso
ciated, all are listed on either a state or federal registry. Total 
costs to investigate and remediate these sites are estimated to 
be approximately $436 million through 2000. The Company 
estimates its share may be less than $10 million. Actual Com
pany expenditures for these sites are dependent upon the total 
cost of investigation and remediation, the determination of 
the Company's share of responsibility for such costs and the 
financial viability of other identified responsible parties.  

The Company believes that costs incurred in the investi
gation and restoration process are recoverable in the rateset
ting process.  

Anti-Trust Action: In December 1987, Long Lake Energy Corpo
ration (Long Lake) filed an action in the United States District 
Court for the Southern District of New York, subsequently 
amended in May 1988, asserting claims under Section 2 of the 
Sherman Act and New York's Donnelly Act. The complaint 
alleges that the Company interfered with Long Lake's attempts 
to license hydroelectric projects with the FERC. In July 1988, 
the Company moved for summary judgment which was sub
sequently denied by the Court without prejudice to its renewal 
at the close of the discovery process. The Company has 
denied the substantive allegations of the complaint and is 
contemplating *renewal of its motion for summary judgment 
when discovery is concluded. Discovery has begun and is ex
pected to be concluded in 1991. By letter dated November 16, 
1989, Long Lake's counsel claimed damages of $214 million 
before trebling. The complaint has not been amended to reflect 
this amount. Long Lake's damage study is based, among other

things, on the assumption that but for the conduct alleged, 
Long Lake would have been awarded a license by FERC for 
numerous hydroelectric sites, for many of which both 
Long Lake and the Company have competing license applica
tions currently pending before FERO. The Company believes 
that it has meritorious defenses to Long Lakes claims. The 
Company is unable to predict the outcome of this action or the 
impact, if any, on the Company's financial position or results.  
of operations.  

Tax assessments: The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has 
completed examinations of the Company's Federal income tax 
returns for 1983 through 1986. The IRS has proposed various 
adjustments to the Company's federal income tax liability for 
these years which, in combination with a reduction in invest
ment tax credit carryforward from 1981 and 1982 resulting from 
a 1990 settlement with the IRS of those years, could increase 
Federal income tax liability by approximately $67 million before 
assessment of penalties and interest. The Company is vigor
ously contesting the proposed adjustments, and believes that 
the ultimate resolution thereof will not have a material effect on 
the Company's financial position or results of operations. The 
Company also believes that the assessments, if any, are gen
erally recoverable in rates.  

Excluded from this potential increase in tax liability is 
approximately $13.6 million that results from issues underlying 
a refund received by the Company in 1990 as well as an antic
ipated refund in 1991. The refund, amounting to $10.5 mil
lion excluding interest, was related to 1981 and 1982. Another 
refund of $3.7 million relating to the same issue as applied to 
1980 is expected to be received in 1991. The refunds for these 
periods will reduce the investment tax credit carryover that was 
utilized in the period 1983 to 1986, thus increasing the Com
pany's tax liability during that period. The Company has 
deferred the refund of tax to be offset by the future tax liability, 
and has agreed to equally share with customers the interest 
refunded, offset by the anticipated interest expenses on the 
future liability 

The IRS has recently begun an examination of the Com
pany's federal income tax returns for the years 1987 and 1988.  
The Company expects that several key issues involving Unit 2, 
including its tax in-service date and cost basis for investment 
tax credit purposes, will be raised during the examination. To 
the extent the IRS is able to sustain disallowances in those 
areas, the Company may have to absorb a portion of any dis
allowance pursuant to the 1990 Unit 2 Settlement Agreement 
(See Note 10).  

The Company is also at various stages of examination by the 
State of New York for sales tax and other state taxes. The 
Company believes that the resolution of these examinations 
will not have. a material impact on the Company's financial 
condition or results of operations, and that any assessments 
ultimately sustained will generally be recoverable by the Com
pany through the ratesetting process.
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NOTE 12. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

Operating revenues, operating income, net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per common share by quarters from 1990, 
1989 and 1988 are shown in the following table. The Company, in its opinion, has included all adjustments necessary for a fair 
presentation of the results of operations for the quarters. Due to the seasonal nature of the utility business, the annual amounts 
are not generated evenly by quarter during the year.  

In thousands of dollars
Quarter 
ended

Operating 
revenues

Operating 
income

Net 
income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per 
common share

December 31,1990 $781,270 $ 63,531 $(1 04,807) $(.85) 
1989 734,038 88,139 9,068 (.01) 
1988 678,858 65,918 (3,808) (.12) 

September 30, 1990 $682,114 $128,191 $ 60,128 $ .37 
1989 612,971 101,546 36,322 .19 
1988 608,393 113,496 52,297 .31 

June 30, 1990 $737,860 $103,750. $ 35,756 $.18 
1989 710,582 87,908 34,147 .17 
1988 702,678 126,718 46,823 .27 

March 31,1990 $953,475 $156,589 $ 91,801 $ .60 
1989 848,452 1 34,366 .71,246 .44 
1988 810,524 170,221 113,502 .77 

Year end adjustments to annual estimates of taxes and expense accruals made in the fourth quarter of 1988 had the effect of 
decreasing net income for the quarter by approximately $14 million or $11 per common share. In the fourth quarter of 1990, 1989 
and 1988, the Company accrued $15 million ($.07 per common share), $14.5 million ($.08 per common share) and $75 million 
($.04 per common share), respectively, relating to its investment in NM Uranium, Inc., resulting in a decrease in net income 
for each quarter (See Note 3. NM Uranium, Inc.). In the fourth quarter of 1990, the Company reflected a loss of $140 million 
($.68 per common share) relating to nuclear replacement power costs disallowed associated with Unit 1 and Unit 2 outages (See 
Note 10. Nuclear Operations).

Report of Independent Accountants 

Price Waterhouse 

To the Stockholders and 
Board of Directors of 
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets 
and the related consolidated statements of income and re
tained earnings and of cash flows present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Niagara Mohawk Power Cor
poration and its subsidiaries at December 31, 1990 and 1989, 
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1990, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Com
pany's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. We con
ducted our audits of these statements in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards which require that we 
plan and perform -the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluat
ing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion 
expressed above.

As discussed in Note 11, the Company is a defendant in a 
lawsuit alleging violations of certain federal and state anti-trust 
statutes. Management is unable to predict whether the 
outcome of this action will have a material effect on its financial 
position or results of operations. Accordingly, no provision for' 
any liability that may result upon resolution of this uncertainty 
has been made in the accompanying 1990 and 1989 financial 
statements.

1-iIa~

Syracuse, New York 
January 31, 1991 
(except for Note 10, Paragraph 14 
which is as of February 20,1991)
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Report of Management 
The consolidated financial statements 
of Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 
and its subsidiaries were prepared by 
and are the responsibility of manage
ment. Financial information contained 
elsewhere in this Annual Report is 
consistent with that in the financial 
statements.  

To meet its responsibilities with re
spect to financial information, man
agement maintains .and enforces a 
system of internal accounting controls, 
which is designed *to provide reason
able assurance, on a cost effective 
basis, as to the integrity, objectivity and 
reliability of the financial records and 
protection of assets. This system in
cludes communication through written 
policies and procedures, an organiza
tional structure that provides for appro
priate division of responsibility and the 
training of personnel. This system is

also tested by a comprehensive internal 
audit program. In addition, the Com
pany has a Code of Conduct which 
requires all employees to maintain the 
highest level of ethical standards and 
requires key management employees to 
formally aff irm their compliance with 
the Code.

The financial statements have been 
examined by Price Waterhouse, the 
Company's independent accountants, 
in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards. As part of their 
examination, they made a study and 
evaluation of the Company's system of 
internal accounting control. The pur
pose of such study was to establish a 
basis for reliance thereon in determin
ing the nature, timing and extent of 
other auditing procedures that were 
necessary for expressing an opinion as 
to whether the financial statements are

presented fairly in all material respects.  
Their examination resulted in the ex
pression of their opinion which appears 
on page 39 of this report. The indepen
dent accountants' examination does not 
limit in any way management's respon-* 
sibility for the fair presentation of the 
financial statements and all other infor
mation, whether audited or unaudited, 
in this Annual Report.  

The Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors, consisting of five directors 
who are not employees, meets regularly 
with management, internal auditors and 
Price Waterhouse to review and discuss 
internal accounting controls, audit 
examinations and financial reporting 
matters. Price Waterhouse and the 
Company's internal auditors have free 
access to meet individually with the 
Audit Committee at any time, without 
management present.

Market Price of Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's common stock and 
certain of its preferred* series are listed 
on the New York Stock Exchange. The 
common stock is also traded on the 
Boston, Cincinnati, Midwest, Pacific 
and Philadelphia stock exchanges.  
Common stock options are traded on 
the American Stock Exchange. The 
ticker symbol is "NMK".  

Preferred dividends were paid on 
March 31, June 30, September 30 and 
December 31. The Company presently 
estimates that none of the 1990 pre
ferred stock dividends will constitute a 
return of capital and therefore all of 
such dividends are subject to Federal 
tax as ordinary income.  

The table below shows quoted mar
ket prices and dividends per share for 
the Company's common stock:

Dividends 
paid Price range

1990 per share High Low 
1 st Quartet - $141/2 $127/8 
2nd Quarter - 143/8 121/8 
3rd Quarter - 143/4 113/4 
4th Quarter - 133/4 12 

1989
$111/2 

103/4 
111/8

On August 31, 1989, the Board of.  
Directors, after considering the uncer
tainties facing the Company, including 
the level and timing of future rate relief, 
the restart of Nine Mile Point Nuclear 
Station Unit No. 1 (Unit 1) and the 
issues associated with a number of 
outstanding regulatory proceedings, 
determined to omit the third quarter 
common stock dividend. No common 
stock dividends have been paid since 
that time. Resumption of payment of 
the common stock dividend will depend 
on the resolution of issues affecting the 
long-range financial condition of the 
Company. The 1989 Agreement provid7 
ed that any party to that Agreement 
could withdraw therefrom if the Com
pany resumed payment of common 
stock dividends prior to Unit 1 being 
fully returned to service and achieving 
an average 75% capacity factor for a 
period of thirty consecutive days.  
Although the Unit 1 operating require
ment was satisfied on November 26, 
1990, in considering the resumption of 
common stock dividend payments or 
the -level at which they would be 
resumed, the Board of Directors must 
consider, among other things, the 
nature, amount and timing of perma
nent rate relief resulting from the 
multiyear plan negotiated pursuant to 
the 1989 Agreement. The Company, 
Public Service Commission Staff (PSC

Staff) and others submitted an agree
ment (the .1991 Stipulation) to the Public 
Service Commission (PSC) on Febru
ary 19, 1991 to establish permanent 
rates for the year ended June 30, 1991 
at the level of temporary rates approved 
by the PSC on December 19, 199 10, as 
well as establish permanent rates 
through December 31, 1992. See 'Man
agement's Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations" for a discussion of the 
1989 Agreement, the Temporary Rate 
Agreement and the 1991 Stipulation.  
The Company expects that the 1991 
Stipulation will be approved by the PSC 
by July 1, 1991, although no such 
assurance can be provided. Approval of 
the 1991 Stipulation by July 1, 1991 will 
not in itself be determinative of the tim
ing of the resumption of the common 
stock dividend.  

Other Stockholder Matters: The holders 
of Common Stock are entitled to one 
vote per share but may not cumulate 
their votes for the election of Directors.  
Whenever dividends on Preferred Stock 
are in default in an amount equivalent to 
four full quarterly dividends and there
after until all dividends thereon are paid 
or declared and set aside for payment, 
the holders of such stock can elect 
a majority of the Board of Directors.  
Whenever dividends on any Preference

1 st Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
4th Quarter

$.30 
.30

$1 33/4 
12 1/8 

143/4
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Stock are in default in an amount 
equivalent to six full quarterly dividends 
and thereafter until all dividends there
on are paid or declared and set apart 
for payment, the holders of such stock 
can elect two members to the Board of 
Directors. No dividends on Preferred 
Stock are now in arrears and no Pref
erence Stock is now outstanding.  

Upon any dissolution, liquidation or 
winding up of the Company's business, 
the holders of Common Stock are 
entitled to receive a pro rata share of all 
of the Company's assets remaining and 
available for distribution after the full

amounts to which holders of Preferred 
and Preference Stock are entitled have 
been satisfied.  

The indenture securing the Com
pany's mortgage debt provides that 
surplus shall be reserved and held 
unavailable for the payment of divi
dends on Common Stock to the extent 
that expenditures for maintenance and 
repairs plus provisions for depreciation 
do not exceed 2.25% of depreciable 
property as defined therein. Such pro
visions have never restricted the Com
pany's surplus.  

At year end, about 133,000 stock-

holders owned common shares of the 
Company and about 6,200 held pre
ferred stock. The chart below summa
rizes common stockholder ownership 
by size of holding:

Size of 
holding 
(Shares) 
1 to 99 

100 to 999 
1,000 or morE

Total Total shares 
stockholders held 

50,080 1,642,511 
74,677 20,677,203 

8,389 113,779,940 

133,146 136,099,654

Serving Our Customers in Upstate New York 

Niagara Mohawk Power Corp. is an investor-owned utility providing 
energy to the largest customer service area in New York.  

Our electric system meets the needs of more than 1.5 million resi
dential, commercial and industrial customers, with power supplied by 
hydroelectric, coal, oil, natural gas and nuclear generating units. Elec
tricity is transmitted through an integrated operating network that is 
linked to other systems in the Northeast for economic exchange and 
mutual reliability 

Our 6,800-mile natural gas system provides service to nearly 475,000 
residential and business customers on a retail basis, as well as a growing 
number of customers from whom we transport gas that they purchase 
directly from suppliers.  

Vk also operate subsidiary companies in the United States and 
Canada. Opinac Energy Corp. operates an oil and gas exploration com
pany and an electric utility in Canada. HYDRA-CO Enterprises Inc. builds 
and operates power production facilities. NITECH Inc. markets advanced 
instrumentations systems to the utility industry
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Selected Financial Data 
As discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, certain of the following selected financial data may not be indicative of the Company's future financial condition or 
results of operations. Certain of the 1987 data is not presented since it is either not meaningful or not applicable in light of the adoption of 
SFAS No. 90 which required the write-off of disallowed Unit 2 costs and resulted in a net loss for the year.  

1990 1989 1988 1987 1986 

Operations: (000's) 
Operating revenues................................. $3,154,719 $2,906,043 $2,800,453 $2,623,430 $2,660,319 
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change .... 82,878 150,783 208,814 57,786 397,865 
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of 

SEAS No. 90........................................ - - - (615,000) 
Net income (loss).................................... 82,878 150,783 208,814 (557,214) 397,865 
Proforma balance available for common stock 

giving effect to the retroactive application of 
SFAS No. 90 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..- 5,769 16,048 

Common stock data: 
Book value per share at year end......................... $14.37 $14.07 $13.87 $13.82 $20.23 
Market price at year end................................ 131/a 143/8 13 12 163/4 
Ratio of market price to book value at year end ................ 91.4% 102.2% 93.7% 86.8% 82.8% 
Dividend yield atyearend............................... 0.0% 0.0% 9.2% 10.0% 12.4% 
Earnings per average common share before 

cumulative effect of accounting change ................... $ .30 $ .78 $ 1.21 $ .05 $ 2.71 
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of 

SEAS No. 90 per average common share .................... - (4.83) 
Earnings per average common share....................... .30 .78 1.21 (4.78) 2.71 
Proforma earnings per average common share 

giving effect to the retroactive 
application of SEAS No. 90............................. - - - .05 .13 

Rate of return on common equity.......................... 2.1% 5.6% 8.7% 12.7%* 13.6% 
Dividends paid per common share........................ $ .00 $ .60 $ 1.20 $ 1.64 $ 2.08 
Dividend payout ratio ................. 0.0% 76.9% 99.2% -76.8% 

Capitalization: (000's) 
Common equity.................................... $1,955,118 $1,914,531 $1,881,394 $1,781,518 $2,571,491 
Non-redeemable preferred stock........................ 290,000 290,000 290,000 290,000 290,000 
Redeemable preferred stock........................... 241,550 267,530 295,510 355,490 347,470 
Long-term debt ................... 3,313,286 3,249,328 2,995,748 2,903,921 2,799,605 

Total................. ............... ,-........ 5,799,954 5,721,389 5,462,652 5,330,929 6,008,566 
First mortgage bonds maturing within one year ....... 40,000 50,000 33,000 50,000 50,000 

Total .......................................... $5,839,954 $5,771,389 $5,495,652 $5,380,929 $6,058,566 

Capitalization ratios: (including first morfgage 
bonds mafuring within one year): 

Common stock equity.................................. 33.5% 33.2% 34.2% 33.1% 425% 
Preferred stock....................................... 9.1 9.6 10.7 12.0 10.5 
Long-term debt....................................... 57.4 57.2 55.1 54.9 47.0 

Financial ratios: 
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges .......................... 1.41 1.71 2.10 1.65* 2.98 
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges without AFC ................ 1.35 1.66 2.06 1.54** 2.42 
Ratio of AFC to balance available for common stock ..... 52.8% 18.3% 6.9% -48.2% 

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred 
stock dividends..................................... 1.17 1.41 1.67 1.04** 2.35 

Proforma Ratios - giving effect to the 
retroactive application of SEAS No. 90: 

Earnings to fixed charges............................ - - - 1.65 1.28 
Earnings to fixed charges and preferred 
stock dividends.................................... - - - 1.04 1.05 

Other ratios-% of operating revenues: 
Fuel, purchased power and purchased gas .................. 36.9% 36.5% 34.6% 35.6% 38.0% 
Maintenance, depreciation and amortization ................ 14.4 14.4 15.1 12.1 11.4 
Total taxes......................................... 14.4 15.3 16.1 16.7 18.1 
Operating income................................... 14.3 14.2 17.0 18.5 16.6 
Balance available for common stock...................... 1.3 3.6 5.7 12.9 

Miscellaneous: (000's) 
Gross additions to utility plant ......................... $ 431,579 $ 413,492 $ 366,142 $ 457,109 $ 784,137 
Total utility plant......... ..... ...................... 8,702,741 8,324,112 7,967,625 7,691,069 8,445,993 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ................ 2,484,124 2,283,307 2,090,170 1,913,687 1,763,443 
Total assets .................... 7,770,314 7,562,472 7,076,041 6,794,098 7,611,203 

Excludes the effect of the adoption of SEAS No. 90 amounting to $833 million.  
Excludes the cumulative effect of the adoption of SEAS No. 90 amounting to $615 million.



NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Electric and Gas Statistics
ELECTRIC CAPABILITY Thousands of kilowatts

At Januaryl1, 1991 % 1990 1989 

Thermal: 
Coa/ fuel: 

Huntley, Niagara River............... 715 9 715 715 
Dunkirk, Lake Erie ......... 579 8 585 560 

Tota/ coal fue/ ........ 1,294 17 1,300 1,275 
Residual oil/fuel: 

Albany, Hudson River-.................. 0 5 400 400 
Oswego, Lake Ontario-.............. 1,661 22 1,654 1,571 
Roseton, Hudson River ................ 300 4 300 300 

Middle distillate ol/fuel 
8 Combustion turbine units ...... 211 3 230 237 

Total oilfuel .......... 2, 1572 34 2,584 2,508 
Nuc/ear fue/: 

Nine Mile Point, Lake Ontario........... 1,051 14 1,050 1,054 
Purchased-firm contract 

Power Authority
FitzPatrick, Lake Ontario..............63 1 77 53 
Total/nuclear fuel . ......- 1,114 15 1,127 1,107 

Independently owned sources ............. 304 4 171 121 
Total thermal sources ......... 5,284 70 5,182 5,011 
Hydro: 
Owned and leased hydro stations (74) . .. 708 9 680 695 
Purchased-irm contracts: 

Power Authority 
Niagara River................... 904 12 915 1,077 
St. Lawrence River................ 104 1 104 
Blenheim-Gilboa 

Pumped Storage Plant..............270 4 395 295 
Other .......... I.. 326 4 298 294 

Total hydro sources................. 2,312 30 2,392 2,361 
Total capability*'......... 7,596 100 7,574 7,372 

1990 1989 1988 
Electric peak load during year . .... 5,792 6,376 6,220 

*Available capability can be increased during heavy load periods by pur
chases from neighboring interconnected systems. Hydro station capability 
is based on average December stream-flow conditions.  

'Has capability to burn natural gas (as well as oil) as a tuel.  
-Oswego Unit 3 burns natural gas only.  

ELECTRICITY GENERATED 
AND PURCHASED Millions of kw-hrs.  

1990 % 1989 % 1988 % 
Thermal: 
Generated 

Coal .......... 8,678 23 9.013 24 7,894 21 
Oil.................. 7,109 18 6,470 17 7,444 19 
Nuclear ....... ,.... 2,975 8 1,762 5 1,460 4 
Natural gas ........... 1,950 5 2,456 6 1,070 3 

Purchased
Nuclear from 
Power Authority............362 1 387 1 306 1 
Independently owned 

sources.............. 1,600 4 830 2 612 1 
To/al thermal . .... 22,674 59 20,918 55 18,786 49 

Hydro: 
Generated............... 4,024 10 3,675 10 3,171 8 
Purchased from 

Power Authority...........6,624 17 6,721 17 7,014 18 
Independently owned 

sources.............. 1,441 4 1,203 3 978 3 
Tota/hydro ...... 12,089 31 11,599 30 11,163 29 

Other purchased power 
various sources ..... 3,674 10 5,765 15 8,192 22 

Total generated 
and purchased ..... 38,437 100 38,282 100 38,141 100

ELECTRIC STATISTICS 
1990 1989 1988 

Electric sales (Millions of kwv-hrs.) 
Residential ........ 10,310 10,357 10,099 
Commercial................. 11,623 11,432 11,182 
Industrial.................. 11,874 12,184 11,745 
Municipal service.............. 226 228 237 
Other electric systems . ... 1,511 1,195 1,732 

35,544 35,396 34,995 

Electric revenues (Thousands of dollars) 
Residential................ $ 917,057 $ 842,523 $ 805,523 
Commercial................ 978,684 874,187 827,918 
Industrial.................. 543,365 486,108 458,332 
Municipal service .............. 44,825 42,294 41,231 
Other electric systems . ... 69,821 58,056 60,214 
Miscellaneous............... 115,556 115,494 150,514 

$2,669,308 $2,418,662 $2,343,732 

Electric customers (Average) 
Residential................ 1,361,961 1,345,033 1,324,367 
Commercial................ 145,231 143,232 140,237 
Industrial................... 2,309 2,334 2,322 
Other ....... .. 3,158 3,163 3,182 

1,512,659 1,493,762 1,470,108 

Residential (Average) 
Annual kw-hr. use 

per customer.............. 7,570 7,700 7,626 
Cost to customer 

per kw-hr................. 8.8ft 8.14C 7.98c 
Annual revenue 

per customer . ..... $673.33 $626.40 $608.23 

GAS STATISTICS 
1990 1989 1988 

Gas sales (Thousands of deliatherms) 
Residential................. 49,955 52,893 51,065 
Commercial................ 22,823 23,152 23,951 
Industrial................... 4,116 2,612 4,274 
Other gas systems . .... 1,723 2,020 2,158 

Total sales ................ 78,617 80,677 81,.448 
Transportation of 

customer-owned gas .... 34,242 33,769 27,244 
Total gas delivered .......... 112,859. 114,446 108,692 

Gas revenues (Thousands of dollars) 
Residential................ $307,217 $317,532 $289,026 
Commercial................ 128,462 125,912 119,929 
Industrial.................. 19,322 12,309 19,008 
Other gas systems............ 7,907 9,272 9,363 
Transportation of 

customer-owned gas .... 22,100 19,831 13,841 
Miscellaneous ..... ............. 403 2,525 5,554 

$485,411 $487,381 $456,721 

Gas customers (Average) 
Residential................. 431,588 424,494 417,360 
Commercial................ 37,011 35,925 35,017 
Industrial................... 272 280 323 
Other...................... 2 2 2 
Transportation................ 567 516 403 

469,440 461,217 453,105

Residential (Average) 
Annual dekatherm use 

per customer.........  
Cost to customer 
.per dekatherm...........  

Annual revenue 
per customer............  

Maximum day gas 
sendout (dekatherms)..

124.6

$6.15 $6.00 

$711.83, $748.02 

714,122 802,909

122.4 

$5.66 

$692.51 

818,128
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Corporate Information 
Annual Meeting 
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at the Everson 
Museum of Art, 401 Harrison Street, Syracuse, N.Y, 13202 at 10:30 a.m., 
Tuesday May 71991. A notice of the meeting, proxy statement and form 
of proxy will be sent in early April to holders of common stock.  

Shareholder Inquiries 
Questions regarding ownership of Niagara Mohawk stock or the status 
of an account may be directed to the companys Shareholder Services 
department: 

(315) 428-6750 (Syracuse) 1-800-962-3236 (New York state) 
1-800-448-5450 (elsewhere in the continental U.S.) 

SEC Form 10-K Report 
A copy of the companys Form 10-K report, filed annually with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, is available without charge 
after March 31,1991 by writing the Investor Relations department at 
300 Erie Boulevard West, Syracuse, N.Y 13202.  

Analyst Inquiries 
Analyst inquiries should be directed to Leon T. Mazur, manager
Investor Relations, (315) 428-3134.  

Disbursing Agent 
Preferred and Common Stocks: 
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 
300 Erie Boulevard est, Syracuse, N.Y 13202 

Bonds: Marine Midland Bank, N.A.  
140 Broadway New York, N.Y. 10015 

Transfer Agents and Registrars 
Preferred and Common Stocks: 
First Chicago Trust Company of New York 
20 West Broadway New York, N.Y 10007-2192 

Bonds: Marine Midland Bank, N.A.  
140 Broadway New York, N.Y 10015 

Stock Exchanges - Ticker Symbol: NMK 
Common Stock and Certain Preferred Series: Listed and traded on the 
New York Stock Exchange.  
Common Stock: Also traded on the Boston, Cincinnati, Midwest, Pacific 

and Philadelphia stock exchanges.  

Bonds: Traded on the New York Stock Exchange.
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